








CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
MEETINGS AND LOCAL EVENTS 

APRIL 12, 2021 
 

April 12 
Council Meeting 
Monday, April 12, 2021 
6:30 pm Work Session – Community Room, City Hall  
7:30pm Meeting - Council Chambers, City Hall 
 
April 13 
Board of Appeals Meeting 
Tuesday, April 13, 2021 
7:00 pm Work Session – Community Room, City Hall 
7:30 pm Meeting – Council Chambers, City Hall 
 
April 15 
DAS & URA Joint Meeting 
Thursday, April 15, 2021 
4:00 pm – City Hall Room 259, Second Floor  
 
April 17 
Extended Farmers’ Market – Farm Products 
Saturday, April 17, 2021 
9:00am-12:00pm 
City Hall Parking Lot 
 
April 18 
Broadcast of 04/12/21 Council Meeting 
Sunday, April 18, 2021 
Watch the broadcast of the 04/12/21 Council Meeting on Comcast Channel 25 at 6:30pm 
 
April 19 
STAT Board Meeting 
Monday, April 19, 2021 
6:00 pm – City Hall Conference Room 145 
 
April 21 
DDA Meeting 
Wednesday, April 21, 2021 
2:00 pm - City Hall Room 259, Second Floor 
 
April 24 
DEA Drug Take Back 
Saturday, April 24, 2021 
10:00 am to 2:00 pm 
Snellville Police Department 
2315 Wisteria Drive 
 
April 26 
Council Meeting 
Monday, April 26, 2021 
6:30pm Work Session – Community Room, City Hall 
7:30pm Meeting - Council Chambers, City Hall 

















Agenda Item Summary 
 

 
TO: The Mayor and Council 
 
FROM: Jason Thompson, Director 

Department of Planning and Development 
 
DATE: March 22, 2021 
 
RE: #RZ 21-01 LUP 21-01 
 
DEVELOPMENT: 13-Lot Single-family Detached Subdivision Development 

2.765± Acres at 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, Georgia 
   
STATUS: Public Hearing (2nd Reading) 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Applications to amend the Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use 
Map and Official Zoning Map for a 13-Lot Single-family Detached subdivision 
development on a 2.765± acre property located at 2706 Lenora Church Road, 
Snellville, Georgia (Tax Parcel 50028 001).  

Financial Impact:  Site Development Permit fees; Building 
Permit fees; Real Property Taxes 

 
Planning Commission 
Meeting: February 23, 2021 
 
Recommendations: 

Case No.  LUP 21-01 RZ 21-01 
Planning 
Department Approval Approval 

Planning 
Commission Approval Approval 

 
Mayor and Council 
Meetings: March 8, 2021 (1st Reading)  

March 22, 2021 (2nd Reading and Public Hearing) 
 
Action requested: Consideration, Public Hearing and Action 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Snellville  2342 Oak Road  Snellville, GA 30078  770.985.3514 www.snellville.org 

marnold
Typewritten Text

marnold
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXX

marnold
Typewritten Text
April 12, 2021

marnold
Typewritten Text
Continued from March 22, 2021 

marnold
Typewritten Text



 
 
 
 
2.765± Acre Site at 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, Georgia  
Case #RZ 21-01 LUP 21-01 
March 22, 2021  
Page… 2 
 
 
Case Documents (website link): 
 

• #RZ 21-01 Rezoning Application (12-14-2020) 
• #LUP 21-01 Land Use Plan Amendment Application (12-14-2020) 
• Property Boundary Survey and Legal Description (12-09-2020) 
• Rezoning Site Plan (11-23-2020) 
• Sample Floor Plans (12-14-2020) 
• Sample Exterior Elevations (12-14-2020) 
• 2-23-3021 Planning Department Case Summary & Analysis (1-20-

2021) 
• 2-23-2021 Planning Commission Case Report (2-24-2021) 
• Unofficial 2-23-2021 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes (2-24-

2021) 
• 3-8-2021 & 3-22-2021 Planning Department Case Summary & Analysis 

with Planning Commission Report (2-24-2021) 
• Conditions Only Recommendations (2-24-2021) 
• #LUP 21-01 Approval Draft Ordinance (2-24-2021) 
• #RZ 21-01 Approval Draft Ordinance (2-24-2021) 
• #LUP 21-01 Denial Draft Ordinance (2-24-2021) 
• #RZ 21-01 Denial Draft Ordinance (2-24-2021)  

https://www.snellville.org/pc-agendas-minutes
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/rz-21-01-application.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/lup-21-01-application.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/boundary-survey.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/rezoning-site-plan-11-23-2020.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/sample-floor-plans.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/sample-exterior-elevations.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/rz-21-01-lup-21-01-staff-report-01-20-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/pc-case-report-rz-21-01-lup-21-01-feb-23-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/rz-21-01-lup-21-01-staff-report-02-24-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/rz-21-01-lup-21-01-conditions-only-2-24-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/lup-21-01-draft-ordinance-approval-2-24-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/rz-21-01-draft-ordinance-approval-2-24-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/lup-21-01-draft-ordinance-denial-2-24-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/rz-21-01-draft-ordinance-denial-2-24-2021.pdf


 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 1 of 6 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-07 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE 2040 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE 
LAND USE MAP FOR THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, FOR A 2.765± 
ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN LAND LOT 28 OF THE 5TH LAND 
DISTRICT, GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA, 2706 LENORA CHURCH ROAD, 
SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL 
CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR 
OTHER PURPOSES. 

 
CASE NUMBER: #LUP 21-01 
 
SIZE: 2.765± Acres 
 
LOCATION: 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, 
 Georgia 
 
TAX PARCEL: R5028 001 
 
CURRENT FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP DESIGNATION: Low-Density Residential 
 
REQUESTED FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP AMENDMENT: Medium-Density Residential 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: 13-Lot Single-family Detached Residential 
 Subdivision 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: Britt and Camp, LLC, Snellville, Georgia 
  
APPLICANT/CONTACT: AXIS Infrastructure, LLC 
 c/o Lorraine Canada 
 678-395-4920  
 or lorrainecanada@axiscompanies.com 
 
 

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the Mayor 

and Council thereof; and 



 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 2 of 6 
 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

amend the designated land use as it applies to the 2.765± acre tract of land located at 

2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, Georgia (Tax Parcel R5028 001) for a 13-lot 

single-family detached residential subdivision; and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.    The future land use designation of the 2.765± acre tract of land as 

shown on the site plan entitled “Proposed Subdivision 2706 Lenora Church Road, 

Snellville, GA 30078”, sealed and dated 1-5-2021 (stamped received 1-6-2021) in 

Exhibit “A”, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference is 

hereby changed from Low-Density Residential to Medium-Density Residential. 

This change in future land use is to be noted on the City of Snellville 2040 

Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map, as previously amended and as approved by 

the Mayor and Council as soon as reasonably possible following the adoption of this 

Ordinance. The future land use map shall also be amended with an editorial note 

specifying the date this Snellville Land Use Plan Amendment was approved by the 

Mayor and Council and specifying the parcel affected by this Ordinance. Until the change 

is indicated on the City of Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map 

approved by the Mayor and Council, this Ordinance shall govern over the City of 

Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map approved by the Mayor and 

Council to the extent of any discrepancy between this Ordinance and the City of 



 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 3 of 6 
 

Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map approved by the Mayor and 

Council. 

Section 2. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 3.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and 

Council that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are 

or were, upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, 

enforceable and constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the 

Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other 

section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 



 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 4 of 6 
 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 4.  Penalties in effect for violations of the Unified Development 

Ordinance of the City of Snellville at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance shall 

be and are hereby made applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force and 

effect. 

 Section 5.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed. 

 Section 6.   This Ordinance was adopted on _________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated 

herein. 

 
 
 
 

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 5 of 6 
 

ORDAINED this _____ day of March, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 6 of 6 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 





 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 1 of 5 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-07 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO DENY THE REQUEST TO AMEND THE 2040 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR THE CITY OF 
SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, FOR A 2.765± ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN 
LAND LOT 28 OF THE 5TH LAND DISTRICT, GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA, 
2706 LENORA CHURCH ROAD, SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA; TO PROVIDE AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 
CASE NUMBER: #LUP 21-01 
 
SIZE: 2.765± Acres 
 
LOCATION: 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, 
 Georgia 
 
TAX PARCEL: R5028 001 
 
CURRENT FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP DESIGNATION: Low-Density Residential 
 
REQUESTED FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP AMENDMENT: Medium-Density Residential 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: 13-Lot Single-family Detached Residential 
 Subdivision 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: Britt and Camp, LLC, Snellville, Georgia 
  
APPLICANT/CONTACT: AXIS Infrastructure, LLC 
 c/o Lorraine Canada 
 678-395-4920  
 or lorrainecanada@axiscompanies.com 
 
 

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the Mayor 

and Council thereof; and 



 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 2 of 5 
 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

deny LUP 21-01, which requested to amend the designated land use as it applies to the 

2.765± acre tract of land located at 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, Georgia (Tax 

Parcel R5028 001) for a 13-lot single-family detached residential subdivision; and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.    For reasons stated in the public hearing and upon review of the 

application submitted by Applicant, the request for a change in the future land use 

designation of the 2.765± acre tract of land as shown on the site plan entitled “Proposed 

Subdivision 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, GA 30078”, sealed and dated 1-5-

2021 (stamped received 1-6-2021) in Exhibit “A”, a copy of which is attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by reference is hereby denied. 

Section 2. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 3.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and 

Council that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are 

or were, upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, 

enforceable and constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, 



 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 3 of 5 
 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the 

Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other 

section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 4.  Penalties in effect for violations of the Unified Development 

Ordinance of the City of Snellville at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance shall 

be and are hereby made applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force and 

effect. 

 Section 5.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed. 

 Section 6.   This Ordinance was adopted on _________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated 

herein. 

 
 



 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 4 of 5 
 

ORDAINED this _____ day of March, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 5 of 5 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 1 of 7 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-08 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, AS AMENDED, FOR A 2.765± ACRE TRACT OF LAND 
LOCATED IN LAND LOT 28 OF THE 5TH LAND DISTRICT, GWINNETT 
COUNTY, GEORGIA, 2706 LENORA CHURCH ROAD, SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA; 
TO ADD CONDITIONS AFFECTING THE PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE FOR 
SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
 
CASE NUMBER: #RZ 21-01 
 
SIZE: 2.765± Acres 
 
LOCATION: 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, 
 Georgia 
 
TAX PARCEL: R5028 001 
 
CURRENT ZONING MAP: RS-30 (Single-family Residential) District 
 
REQUESTED ZONING MAP 
AMENDMENT: RS-5 (Single-family Residential) District 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: 13-Lot Single-family Detached Residential 
 Subdivision 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: Britt and Camp, LLC, Snellville, Georgia 
  
APPLICANT/CONTACT: AXIS Infrastructure, LLC 
 c/o Lorraine Canada 
 678-395-4920  
 or lorrainecanada@axiscompanies.com 
  
  

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the 

Mayor and Council thereof; and, 



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 2 of 7 
 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

amend its official zoning map as it applies to the 2.765± acre tract of land located at 2706 

Lenora Church Road, Snellville, Georgia (Tax Parcel R5028 001) for a 13-lot single-

family detached residential subdivision; and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.  The Official Zoning Map for the City of Snellville, Georgia for the 

2.765± acre tract of land as shown on the rezoning site plan entitled “Proposed 

Subdivision 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, GA 30078”, sealed and dated 1-5-

2021 (stamped received 1-6-2021) in Exhibit “A”, a copy of which is attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by reference is hereby changed from RS-30 (Single-family 

Residential) District to RS-5 (Single-family Residential) District. This action is subject to 

the attachment of the following conditions (1-7): 

CONDITIONS: 

1. The property shall be developed in accordance with the rezoning site plan 

entitled “Proposed Subdivision 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, GA 

30078”, sealed and dated 1-5-2021 (stamped received 1-6-2021), with 

modifications permitted to meet conditions of zoning or State, County, and 

City regulations. Substantial variation from the rezoning site plan, as 

determined by the Director of Planning and Development will require Mayor 

and Council approval. 



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 3 of 7 
 

2. All lots shall connect to sanitary sewer. 

3. A Property Owner’s Association shall be established for the continuous 

maintenance of open space, stormwater detention facility, and entrance 

signage. 

4. Twenty (20) percent of the total site area must be conserved as open space and 

subject to the Open Space regulations of Sec. 401-2 of Chapter 4 of the 

Snellville Unified Development Ordinance.  

5. Subdivision entrance signage (if any) shall be located on Open Space. 

6. Signs higher than 15 feet or larger than 225 square feet are prohibited. 

7. Two-car garages are required for dwellings having more than two (2) 

bedrooms. 

Section 2.  The changes in zoning classification are to be noted on the Official 

Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia as approved by the Mayor and Council as 

soon as reasonably possible following the adoption of this Ordinance.  The Official 

Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia, shall also be amended with an editorial 

note specifying the date these Snellville zoning amendments were approved by the Mayor 

and Council and specifying the parcels affected by this Ordinance.  Until the changes are 

indicated on the Official Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia, as approved by 

the Mayor and Council, this Ordinance shall govern over Official Zoning Map of the City 

of Snellville, Georgia approved by the Mayor and Council to the extent of any 

discrepancy between this Ordinance and the Official Zoning Map of the City of 

Snellville, Georgia approved by the Mayor and Council. 



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 4 of 7 
 

 Section 3. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 4.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and 

Council that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are 

or were, upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, 

enforceable and constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance.  It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the 

Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other 

section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 5 of 7 
 

Section 5.  Penalties in effect for violations of the Unified Development 

Ordinance of the City of Snellville at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance shall 

be and are hereby made applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force and 

effect. 

 Section 6.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed 

 Section 7.   This Ordinance was adopted on __________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated 

herein. 

 
 
 

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 6 of 7 
 

ORDAINED this ______ day of March, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 7 of 7 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 





 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 1 of 5 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-08 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO DENY THE REQUEST TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING 
MAP OF THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, AS AMENDED, FOR A 2.765± 
ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN LAND LOT 28 OF THE 5TH LAND 
DISTRICT, GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA, 2706 LENORA CHURCH ROAD, 
SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR 
OTHER PURPOSES. 
 
CASE NUMBER: #RZ 21-01 
 
SIZE: 2.765± Acres 
 
LOCATION: 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, 
 Georgia 
 
TAX PARCEL: R5028 001 
 
CURRENT ZONING MAP: RS-30 (Single-family Residential) District 
 
REQUESTED ZONING MAP 
AMENDMENT: RS-5 (Single-family Residential) District 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: 13-Lot Single-family Detached Residential 
 Subdivision 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: Britt and Camp, LLC, Snellville, Georgia 
  
APPLICANT/CONTACT: AXIS Infrastructure, LLC 
 c/o Lorraine Canada 
 678-395-4920  
 or lorrainecanada@axiscompanies.com 
  
  

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the 

Mayor and Council thereof; and, 



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 2 of 5 
 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

deny RZ 21-01, which requested to amend the official zoning map as it applies to the 

2.765± acre tract of land located at 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, Georgia (Tax 

Parcel R5028 001) for a 13-lot single-family detached residential subdivision; and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.  For reasons stated in the public hearing and upon a review of the 

application submitted by the Applicant, the request for a change to the Official Zoning 

Map for the City of Snellville, Georgia for the 2.765± acre tract of land as shown on the 

rezoning site plan entitled “Proposed Subdivision 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, 

GA 30078”, sealed and dated 1-5-2021 (stamped received 1-6-2021) in Exhibit “A”, a 

copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference is hereby denied. 

 Section 2. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 3.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and 

Council that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are 

or were, upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, 

enforceable and constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, 



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 3 of 5 
 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance.  It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the 

Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other 

section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 4.  Penalties in effect for violations of the Unified Development 

Ordinance of the City of Snellville at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance shall 

be and are hereby made applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force and 

effect. 

 Section 5.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed 

 Section 6.   This Ordinance was adopted on __________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated 

herein. 

 
[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 4 of 5 
 

ORDAINED this ______ day of March, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 5 of 5 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 



Agenda Item Summary 
 

 
TO: The Mayor and Council 
 
FROM: Jason Thompson, Director 

Department of Planning and Development 
 
DATE: April 12, 2021 
 
RE: #RZ 21-02 LUP 21-02 
 
DEVELOPMENT: 21-Lot Single-family Detached (Age-Restricted) Subdivision 

5.58± Acres at 3491 Rosebud Road, Snellville, Georgia 
   
STATUS: 1st Reading 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Applications to amend the Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use 
Map and Official Zoning Map for a 21-Lot single-family detached age-restricted 
subdivision on a 5.58± acre property located at 3491 Rosebud Road, Snellville. 

The subject property is to be incorporated into the adjoining 75.29 acre site, 
zoned RO (Residential for Older Persons) District for a combined 274-lot age-
restricted single-family detached residential community. 

Financial Impact:  Site Development Permit fees; Building 
Permit fees; Real Property Taxes 

 
Planning Commission 
Meeting: March 23, 2021 
 
Recommendations: 

Case No.  LUP 21-02 RZ 21-02 
Planning 
Department Approval Approval 

Planning 
Commission Approval Approval 

 
Mayor and Council 
Meetings: April 12, 2021 (1st Reading)  

April 26, 2021 (2nd Reading and Public Hearing) 
 
Action requested: Consideration and Waive the 1st Reading 
 
 
 

City of Snellville  2342 Oak Road  Snellville, GA 30078  770.985.3514 www.snellville.org 



 
 
 
 
5.58± Acre Site at 3491 Rosebud Road, Snellville, Georgia  
Case #RZ 21-02 LUP 21-02 
April 12, 2021  
Page… 2 
 
 
Case Documents (website link): 
 

• #RZ 21-02 Application (2-5-2021) 
• #LUP 21-02 Application (2-5-2021) 
• Auburn Model Plans (2-5-2021) 
• Denton Model Plans (2-5-2021) 
• Edison Model Plans (2-5-2021) 
• Jefferson Model Plans (2-5-2021) 
• Montrose Model Plans (2-5-2021) 
• Pearson Model Plans (2-5-2021) 
• Tifton Model Plans (2-5-2021) 
• Weston Model Plans (2-5-2021) 
• Rezoning Site Plan (1-22-2021) 
• 3-23-2021 Planning Department Case Summary & Analysis (3-2-2021) 
• Unofficial 3-23-2021 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes 

(3-29-2021) 
• 3-23-2021 Planning Commission Case report (3-29-2021) 
• 04-12-2021 and 04-26-2021 Planning Department Case Summary & 

Analysis with Planning Commission Report (3-29-2021) 
• Conditions Only Recommendations (3-29-2021) 
• Variances Only Recommendations (3-29-2021) 
• #LUP 21-02 Approval Draft Ordinance (4-6-2021) 
• #RZ 21-02 Approval Draft Ordinance (4-6-2021) 
• #LUP 21-02 Denial Draft Ordinance (4-6-2021) 
• #RZ 21-02 Denial Draft Ordinance (4-6-2021)  

https://www.snellville.org/2017-agenda-packet-materials
https://www.snellville.org/pc-agendas-minutes
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-02-lup-21-02/rz-application-2-5-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-02-lup-21-02/lup-application-2-5-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-02-lup-21-02/auburn-model-plans.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-02-lup-21-02/denton-model-plans.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-02-lup-21-02/edison-model-plans.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-02-lup-21-02/jefferson-model-plans.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-02-lup-21-02/montrose-model-plans.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-02-lup-21-02/pearson-model-plans.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-02-lup-21-02/tifton-model-plans.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-02-lup-21-02/weston-model-plans.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-02-lup-21-02/itpmcommunities.com_20210210_095544.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-02-lup-21-02/rz-21-02-lup-21-02-staff-report-02-17-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-02-lup-21-02/pc-case-report-rz-21-02-lup-21-02-mar-29-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-02-lup-21-02/rz-21-02-lup-21-02-staff-report-03-29-2021-rev.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-02-lup-21-02/rz-21-02-lup-21-02-conditions-only-3-30-2021-rev.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-02-lup-21-02/rz-21-02-lup-21-02-variances-only-3-30-2021.pdf


 

ORD 2021-10     #RZ 21-02  Page 1 of 10 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-10 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, AS AMENDED, FOR A 5.58± ACRE TRACT OF LAND 
LOCATED IN LAND LOT 94 OF THE 5TH LAND DISTRICT, GWINNETT 
COUNTY, GEORGIA, 3491 ROSEBUD ROAD, SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA; TO ADD 
CONDITIONS AFFECTING THE PROPERTY; TO APPROVE VARIANCES; TO 
PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO 
PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
 
CASE NUMBER: #RZ 21-02 
 
SIZE: 5.58± Acres 
 
LOCATION: 3491 Rosebud Road, Snellville, Georgia 
 
TAX PARCEL: R5094 327 
 
CURRENT ZONING MAP: RS-30 (Single-Family Residential) District 
  
REQUESTED ZONING MAP 
AMENDMENT: RO (Residential for Older Persons) District 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: 21-Lot Single-family Detached (Age-

Restricted 55+) Residential Subdivision 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: Summit Chase Country Club, Inc. 
 Snellville, Georgia 
 
APPLICANT/CONTACT: John Gaskin 
 Patrick Malloy Companies, LLC 
 Atlanta, Georgia  
 770-319-5258 or 
 john.gaskin@pmcommunities.com 
  
  

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the 

Mayor and Council thereof; and, 



 

ORD 2021-10     #RZ 21-02  Page 2 of 10 
 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

amend its official zoning map as it applies to the 5.58± acre tract of land located at 3491 

Rosebud Road, Snellville, Georgia (Tax Parcel R5094 327) for a 21-lot single-family 

detached (age-restricted) residential subdivision development and incorporate it into the 

adjoining 75.29± acre 253-lot tract that was rezoned in June 2019 (case #RZ 19-02 LUP 

19-01) for an age-restricted (55+) single-family detached residential community; and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.  The Official Zoning Map for the City of Snellville, Georgia for the 

5.58± acre tract of land as shown on the conceptual rezoning site plan entitled “Rezoning 

Exhibit Summit Chase Snellville Georgia”, dated 1-22-2021 (stamped received 2-5-

2021), in Exhibit “A”, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by 

reference is hereby changed from RS-30 (Single-family Residential) District to RO 

(Residential for Older Persons) District. This action is subject to the attachment of the 

following conditions (1-17): 

CONDITIONS: 

1. The property shall be developed in accordance with the conceptual rezoning site 

plan entitled “Rezoning Exhibit Summit Chase Snellville Georgia”, dated 1-22-

2021 (stamped received 2-5-2021), with modifications permitted to meet 

conditions of zoning or State, County, and City regulations. Substantial variation 



 

ORD 2021-10     #RZ 21-02  Page 3 of 10 
 

from the conceptual rezoning site plan, as determined by the Director of Planning 

and Development will require Mayor and Council approval. 

2. Single-family detached dwellings shall not exceed a density of 3.41 units per acre. 

The project is to be deed restricted to residents aged 55 and older. 

3. Stormwater detention facility(s) shall be fenced with either a black vinyl-coated 

chain link fence a minimum of four feet in height, or 6-8-foot-tall privacy fence. 

4. Signs higher than 15 feet and larger than 225 sq. ft. in area are prohibited. 

5. All corner lots and lots abutting an external public street shall be designated as 

“High Visibility Lots” and require a continuation of the front façade treatments to 

the corner side to continue the architectural theme that is presented on the front 

elevation to the corner elevation exposed to public view. 

6. There shall be master protective covenants for the entire development that will 

include all phases of the development (recreation/amenity and residential) and 

such other usual and necessary covenants and restrictions to protect the quality 

and integrity of the single-family development. 

7. A mandatory homeowner’s association shall be formed and incorporated for all 

single-family lots in the development and common areas which will include all 

component parts of the proposed development. The Homeowners’ Association 

shall be responsible for the oversight, upkeep, maintenance and repair of all 

common areas/facilities; private streets; curb and gutter; stormwater detention 

facilities,  including detention ponds, underground pipe/structures, catch basins, 

headwalls and manholes;  street frontage and amenity area landscaping; gated 

entrance areas; ground signage; walls and fencing; open space areas; amenities 



 

ORD 2021-10     #RZ 21-02  Page 4 of 10 
 

including tennis court, swimming pool, clubhouse, walking trails and other 

amenities, and the like contained within the overall development, and maintain 

adequate liability insurance and working capital. 

8. The Homeowners’ Association shall be responsible for the exterior maintenance 

of individual residences to include, at a minimum, painting of the exteriors on a 

rotation not to exceed ten (10) years. 

9. A Residential Drainage Plan (RDP) shall be submitted for review and approval by 

the Director of Planning and development for those lots so designated on the Final 

Plat prior to issuance of a building permit. 

10. A no-access easement shall be provided on the side and rear of all lots abutting 

Rosebud Road, Temple Johnson Road, and Brushy Fork Road. 

11. All driveways shall be a minimum of twenty-two feet (22’) in length, measured 

from the front of the garage door to the leading edge of the sidewalk (edge closest 

to dwelling), and shall be wide enough to accommodate the parallel parking of 

two vehicles. 

12. All streets shall be privately owned and maintained by the Homeowners’ 

Association. 

13. All approved zoning conditions and variances shall be referenced on any plat of a 

lot provided to homebuyers. 

14. Non-substantial variances, as determined by the Director of Planning and 

Development and/or City Manager for the design requirements, zoning 

requirements, development regulations, and construction requirements must be 



 

ORD 2021-10     #RZ 21-02  Page 5 of 10 
 

submitted in writing for administrative review and approval by the Director of 

Planning and Development. 

15. The 5.58± acre parcel shall be subject to and included within the Master 

Protective Covenants written for the entire Summit Chase development that 

includes the adjoining 75 acre parcel zoned in June 2019 for case #RZ 19-02 LUP 

19-01. 

16. Concurrent with the rezoning the Mayor and Council shall include the adoption of 

the following Architectural Plans submitted by the developer: TIFTON, 

WESTON, EDLSON, JEFFERSON, AUBURN, DENTON, PEARSON, and 

MONTROSE. 

17. With the exception of the “High Visibility Lots” in Condition #5 (above), the 

approved architectural plans shall at a minimum be subject to the following 

Architectural Design Standards: 

a. Forty-Five (45) percent of the units shall have a front facade composed of 

cedar shake accent with two-foot (2') masonry/brick water table. Side and rear 

elevations shall be constructed of stained/painted cedar shake and/or cement 

board siding. 

b. Forty-Five (45) percent of the units shall have a front facade composed of 

cedar shake accent with thirty (30) percent brick/masonry accent. Side and 

rear elevations shall be constructed of stained/painted cedar shake and/or 

cement board siding. 



 

ORD 2021-10     #RZ 21-02  Page 6 of 10 
 

c. Ten (10) percent of the units shall have a front facade of cedar shake with 

Seventy (70) percent brick/masonry. Side and Rear elevations shall be 

constructed of stained/painted cedar shake and or cement board siding. 

Section 2.  (a) The requested variance from UDO Sec. 202-9.7, Building 

Separation to reduce the 15 foot minimum separation between buildings on the same site 

to 10 feet is approved.  

(b) The requested variances from UDO Table 201-3.2.D, Allowed Building 

Materials to exceed the 50% maximum allowance for use of siding material on the front, 

side, and rear elevation of any one dwelling is approved, subject to Condition #17 

(above). 

(c) The requested variance from UDO Sec. 201-3.3.E.3, Garage Doors, to allow 

the garage doors facing a street to not be required to be located at least 10 feet behind 

front wall plane of the dwelling, not including front porches is approved. 

(d) The requested variance from UDO Sec. 201-3.3.E.4, Garage Doors, to allow 

single-family detached dwelling garage doors facing a street to comprise more than 50% 

of the overall width of the front wall plane of the house is approved. 

Section 3.  The changes in zoning classification are to be noted on the Official 

Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia as approved by the Mayor and Council as 

soon as reasonably possible following the adoption of this Ordinance.  The Official 

Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia, shall also be amended with an editorial 

note specifying the date these Snellville zoning amendments were approved by the Mayor 

and Council and specifying the parcels affected by this Ordinance.  Until the changes are 

indicated on the Official Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia, as approved by 



 

ORD 2021-10     #RZ 21-02  Page 7 of 10 
 

the Mayor and Council, this Ordinance shall govern over Official Zoning Map of the City 

of Snellville, Georgia approved by the Mayor and Council to the extent of any 

discrepancy between this Ordinance and the Official Zoning Map of the City of 

Snellville, Georgia approved by the Mayor and Council. 

 Section 4. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 5.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and 

Council that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are 

or were, upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, 

enforceable and constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance.  It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the 

Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other 

section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 



 

ORD 2021-10     #RZ 21-02  Page 8 of 10 
 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 6.  Penalties in effect for violations of the Chapter 1 of the Code of 

Ordinances, City of Snellville, Georgia at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance 

shall be and are hereby made applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force 

and effect. 

 Section 7.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed 

 Section 8.   This Ordinance was adopted on __________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated 

herein. 

 
 
 

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



 

ORD 2021-10     #RZ 21-02  Page 9 of 10 
 

ORDAINED this ______ day of April, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



 

ORD 2021-10     #RZ 21-02  Page 10 of 10 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 











 

ORD 2021-10     #RZ 21-02  Page 1 of 6 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-10 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO DENY THE REQUEST TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING 
MAP OF THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, AS AMENDED, FOR A 5.58± 
ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN LAND LOT 94 OF THE 5TH LAND 
DISTRICT, GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA, 3491 ROSEBUD ROAD, 
SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA; TO DENY VARIANCES; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
 
CASE NUMBER: #RZ 21-02 
 
SIZE: 5.58± Acres 
 
LOCATION: 3491 Rosebud Road, Snellville, Georgia 
 
TAX PARCEL: R5094 327 
 
CURRENT ZONING MAP: RS-30 (Single-Family Residential) District 
  
REQUESTED ZONING MAP 
AMENDMENT: RO (Residential for Older Persons) District 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: 21-Lot Single-family Detached (Age-

Restricted 55+) Residential Subdivision 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: Summit Chase Country Club, Inc. 
 Snellville, Georgia 
 
APPLICANT/CONTACT: John Gaskin 
 Patrick Malloy Companies, LLC 
 Atlanta, Georgia  
 770-319-5258 or 
 john.gaskin@pmcommunities.com 
 
 

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the 

Mayor and Council thereof; and, 



 

ORD 2021-10     #RZ 21-02  Page 2 of 6 
 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

deny RZ 21-02, which requested to amend the official zoning map as it applies to the 

5.58± acre tract of land located at 3491 Rosebud Road, Snellville, Georgia (Tax Parcel 

R5094 327) for a 21-lot single-family detached (age-restricted) residential subdivision; 

and, 

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

deny variances requested by the Applicant as it applies to the 5.58± acre tract of land 

located at 3491 Rosebud Road, Snellville, Georgia (Tax Parcel R5094 327) for a 21-lot 

single-family detached (age-restricted) residential subdivision; and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.  For reasons stated in the public hearing and upon a review of the 

application submitted by the Applicant, the request for a change to the Official Zoning 

Map for the City of Snellville, Georgia from RS-30 (Single-family Residential) District 

to RO (Residential for Older Persons) District for the 5.58± acre tract of land as shown 

on the conceptual rezoning site plan entitled “Rezoning Exhibit Summit Chase Snellville 

Georgia”, dated 1-22-2021 (stamped received 2-5-2021), in Exhibit “A”, a copy of which 

is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference is hereby denied. 

Section 2.  (a) The requested variance from UDO Sec. 202-9.7, Building 

Separation to reduce the 15 foot minimum separation between buildings on the same site 

to 10 feet is denied.  



 

ORD 2021-10     #RZ 21-02  Page 3 of 6 
 

(b) The requested variances from UDO Table 201-3.2.D, Allowed Building 

Materials to exceed the 50% maximum allowance for use of siding material on the front, 

side, and rear elevation of any one dwelling is denied. 

(c) The requested variance from UDO Sec. 201-3.3.E.3, Garage Doors, to allow 

the garage doors facing a street to not be required to be located at least 10 feet behind 

front wall plane of the dwelling, not including front porches is denied. 

(d) The requested variance from UDO Sec. 201-3.3.E.4, Garage Doors, to allow 

single-family detached dwelling garage doors facing a street to comprise more than 50% 

of the overall width of the front wall plane of the house is denied. 

 Section 3. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 4.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and 

Council that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are 

or were, upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, 

enforceable and constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance.  It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the 

Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other 

section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 



 

ORD 2021-10     #RZ 21-02  Page 4 of 6 
 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 5.  Penalties in effect for violations of the Chapter 1 of the Code of 

Ordinances, City of Snellville, Georgia at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance 

shall be and are hereby made applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force 

and effect. 

 Section 6.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed 

 Section 7.   This Ordinance was adopted on __________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated 

herein. 

 
 
 

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



 

ORD 2021-10     #RZ 21-02  Page 5 of 6 
 

ORDAINED this ______ day of April, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



 

ORD 2021-10     #RZ 21-02  Page 6 of 6 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 



 

ORD 2021-11     #LUP 21-02  Page 1 of 6 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-11 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE 2040 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE 
LAND USE MAP FOR THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, FOR A 5.58± ACRE 
TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN LAND LOT 94 OF THE 5TH LAND DISTRICT, 
GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA, 3491 ROSEBUD ROAD, SNELLVILLE, 
GEORGIA; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING 
ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER 
PURPOSES. 

 
CASE NUMBER: #LUP 21-02 
 
SIZE: 5.58± Acres 
 
LOCATION: 3491 Rosebud Road, Snellville, Georgia 
 
TAX PARCEL: R5094 327 
 
CURRENT FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP DESIGNATION: Park-Recreation 
 
REQUESTED FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP AMENDMENT: Low-Density Residential 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: 21-Lot Single-family Detached Residential 
 Subdivision 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: Summit Chase Country Club, Inc. 
 Snellville, Georgia 
 
APPLICANT/CONTACT: John Gaskin, VP Land Acquisition 
 Patrick Malloy Companies, LLC 
 770-319-5258 or john.gaskin@pmccommunities.com 
 

 

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the Mayor 

and Council thereof; and 



 

ORD 2021-11     #LUP 21-02  Page 2 of 6 
 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

amend the designated land use as it applies to the 5.58± acre tract of land located at 3491 

Rosebud Road, Snellville, Georgia (Tax Parcel R5094 327) for a 21-lot single-family 

detached (age-restricted) residential subdivision development and incorporate it into the 

adjoining 75.29± acre 253-lot tract that was rezoned in June 2019 (case #RZ 19-02 LUP 

19-01) for an age-restricted (55+) single-family detached residential community; and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.    The future land use designation of the 5.58± acre tract of land as 

shown on the conceptual rezoning site plan entitled “Rezoning Exhibit Summit Chase 

Snellville Georgia”, dated 1-22-2021 (stamped received 2-5-2021), in Exhibit “A”, a 

copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference is hereby changed 

from Park-Recreation to Low-Density Residential. 

This change in future land use is to be noted on the City of Snellville 2040 

Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map, as previously amended and as approved by 

the Mayor and Council as soon as reasonably possible following the adoption of this 

Ordinance. The future land use map shall also be amended with an editorial note 

specifying the date this Snellville Land Use Plan Amendment was approved by the 

Mayor and Council and specifying the parcel affected by this Ordinance. Until the change 

is indicated on the City of Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map 

approved by the Mayor and Council, this Ordinance shall govern over the City of 



 

ORD 2021-11     #LUP 21-02  Page 3 of 6 
 

Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map approved by the Mayor and 

Council to the extent of any discrepancy between this Ordinance and the City of 

Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map approved by the Mayor and 

Council. 

Section 2. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 3.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and 

Council that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are 

or were, upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, 

enforceable and constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the 

Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other 

section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 



 

ORD 2021-11     #LUP 21-02  Page 4 of 6 
 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 4.  Penalties in effect for violations of Chapter 1 of the Code of 

Ordinances, City of Snellville, Georgia at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance 

shall be and are hereby made applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force 

and effect. 

 Section 5.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed. 

 Section 6.   This Ordinance was adopted on _________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated 

herein. 

 
 
 
 

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



 

ORD 2021-11     #LUP 21-02  Page 5 of 6 
 

ORDAINED this _____ day of April, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



 

ORD 2021-11     #LUP 21-02  Page 6 of 6 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 











 

ORD 2021-11     #LUP 21-02  Page 1 of 6 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-11 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO DENY THE REQUEST TO AMEND THE 2040 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR THE CITY OF 
SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, FOR A 5.58± ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN 
LAND LOT 94 OF THE 5TH LAND DISTRICT, GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA, 
3491 ROSEBUD ROAD, SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 
CASE NUMBER: #LUP 21-02 
 
SIZE: 5.58± Acres 
 
LOCATION: 3491 Rosebud Road, Snellville, Georgia 
 
TAX PARCEL: R5094 327 
 
CURRENT FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP DESIGNATION: Park-Recreation 
 
REQUESTED FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP AMENDMENT: Low-Density Residential 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: 21-Lot Single-family Detached Residential 
 Subdivision 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: Summit Chase Country Club, Inc. 
 Snellville, Georgia 
 
APPLICANT/CONTACT: John Gaskin, VP Land Acquisition 
 Patrick Malloy Companies, LLC 
 770-319-5258 or john.gaskin@pmccommunities.com 
 

 

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the Mayor 

and Council thereof; and 



 

ORD 2021-11     #LUP 21-02  Page 2 of 6 
 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

deny LUP 21-02, which requested to amend the designated future land use map as it 

applies to the 5.58± acre tract of land located at 3491 Rosebud Road, Snellville, Georgia 

(Tax Parcel R5094 327) for a 21-lot single-family detached (age-restricted) residential 

subdivision development and incorporate it into the adjoining 75.29± acre 253-lot tract 

that was rezoned in June 2019 (case #RZ 19-02 LUP 19-01) for an age-restricted (55+) 

single-family detached residential community; and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.    For reasons stated in the public hearing and upon review of the 

application submitted by Applicant, the request for a change in the future land use map 

designation from Park-Recreation to Low-Density Residential for the 5.58± acre tract of 

land as shown on the conceptual rezoning site plan entitled “Rezoning Exhibit Summit 

Chase Snellville Georgia”, dated 1-22-2021 (stamped received 2-5-2021), in Exhibit “A”, 

a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference is hereby denied. 

Section 2. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 3.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and 

Council that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are 

or were, upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, 

enforceable and constitutional. 



 

ORD 2021-11     #LUP 21-02  Page 3 of 6 
 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the 

Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other 

section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 4.  Penalties in effect for violations of the Zoning Ordinance of the 

City of Snellville at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance shall be and are 

hereby made applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force and effect. 

 Section 5.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed. 



 

ORD 2021-11     #LUP 21-02  Page 4 of 6 
 

 Section 6.   This Ordinance was adopted on _________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated 

herein. 

 
 
 
 

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



 

ORD 2021-11     #LUP 21-02  Page 5 of 6 
 

ORDAINED this _____ day of April, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



 

ORD 2021-11     #LUP 21-02  Page 6 of 6 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 



Agenda Item Summary 
 

 
TO: The Mayor and Council 
 
FROM: Jason Thompson, Director 

Department of Planning and Development 
 
DATE: April 12, 2021 
 
RE: #RZ 21-03 LUP 21-03 
 
DEVELOPMENT: 5-Lot Single-family Detached Subdivision 

1.17± Acres at 1736 Oak Road, Snellville, Georgia 
   
STATUS: 1st Reading 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Applications to amend the Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use 
Map and Official Zoning Map for a 5-Lot single-family detached subdivision on a 
1.17± acre property located at 1736 Oak Road, Snellville, Georgia.  

 
 
Financial Impact:  Site Development Permit fees; Building 

Permit fees; Real Property Taxes 
 
Planning Commission 
Meeting: March 23, 2021 
 
Recommendations: 

Case No.  LUP 21-03 RZ 21-03 
Planning 
Department Approval Approval 

Planning 
Commission Approval Approval 

 
Mayor and Council 
Meetings: April 12, 2021 (1st Reading)  

April 26, 2021 (2nd Reading and Public Hearing) 
 
Action requested: Consideration and Waive the 1st Reading 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Snellville  2342 Oak Road  Snellville, GA 30078  770.985.3514 www.snellville.org 



 
 
 
 
1.17± Acre Site at 1736 Oak Road, Snellville, Georgia  
Case #RZ 21-03 LUP 21-03 
April 12, 2021  
Page… 2 
 
 
Case Documents (website link): 
 

• #RZ 21-03 Application (2-9-2021) 
• #LUP 21-03 Application (2-9-2021) 
• Sample Elevations and Floor Plan (2-9-2021) 
• Conceptual Site Plan (2-8-2021) 
• Property Boundary Survey (2-12-2021) 
• Application Amendment (2-12-2021) 
• 3-23-2021 Planning Department Case Summary & Analysis (3-2-2021) 
• Unofficial 3-23-2021 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes 

(3-29-2021) 
• 3-23-2021 Planning Commission Case Report (3-29-2021) 
• 04-12-2021 and 04-26-2021 Planning Department Case Summary & 

Analysis with Planning Commission Report (3-29-2021) 
• Conditions Only Recommendations (3-29-2021) 
• Variances Only Recommendations (3-29-2021) 
• #LUP 21-03 Approval Draft Ordinance (4-6-2021) 
• #RZ 21-03 Approval Draft Ordinance (4-6-2021) 
• #LUP 21-03 Denial Draft Ordinance (4-6-2021) 
• #RZ 21-03 Denial Draft Ordinance (4-6-2021)  

https://www.snellville.org/pc-agendas-minutes
https://www.snellville.org/2017-agenda-packet-materials
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-03-lup-21-03/rz-application-2-9-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-03-lup-21-03/lup-application-2-9-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-03-lup-21-03/sample-elevations-and-floor-plan.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-03-lup-21-03/conceptual-site-plan-2-8-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-03-lup-21-03/property-boundary-survey-2-12-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-03-lup-21-03/application-amendment-2-12-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-03-lup-21-03/rz-21-03-lup-21-03-staff-report-03-03-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-03-lup-21-03/pc-case-report-rz-21-03-lup-21-03-mar-29-2021-rev.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-03-lup-21-03/rz-21-03-lup-21-03-staff-report-03-29-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-03-lup-21-03/rz-21-03-lup-21-03-conditions-only-3-29-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-03-lup-21-03/rz-21-03-lup-21-03-variances-only-3-29-2021.pdf


 

ORD 2021-12     #RZ 21-03  Page 1 of 8 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-12 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, AS AMENDED, FOR A 1.17± ACRE TRACT OF LAND 
LOCATED IN LAND LOT 24 OF THE 5TH LAND DISTRICT, GWINNETT COUNTY, 
GEORGIA, 1736 OAK ROAD, SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA; TO ADD CONDITIONS 
AFFECTING THE PROPERTY; TO APPROVE VARIANCES; TO DENY 
VARIANCES; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING 
ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER 
PURPOSES. 
 
CASE NUMBER: #RZ 21-03 
 
SIZE: 1.17± Acres 
 
LOCATION: 1736 Oak Road, Snellville, Georgia 
 
TAX PARCEL: R5024 175 
 
CURRENT ZONING MAP: OP (Office-Professional) District 
  
REQUESTED ZONING MAP 
AMENDMENT: RS-5 (Single-family Residential) District 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: 5-Lot Single-family Detached Residential 
 Subdivision 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: Oak Road, LLC 
 Lawrenceville, Georgia 
 
APPLICANT/CONTACT: Roger Fisher 
 Fisher Allen Group, LLC 
 404-391-6538 or Roger@fisherallengroup.com 
  
  

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the Mayor 

and Council thereof; and, 



 

ORD 2021-12     #RZ 21-03  Page 2 of 8 
 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

amend its official zoning map as it applies to the 1.17± acre tract of land located at 1736 

Oak Road, Snellville, Georgia (Tax Parcel R5024 175) for a 5-lot single-family detached 

residential subdivision; and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF THE 

CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.  The Official Zoning Map for the City of Snellville, Georgia for the 

1.17± acre tract of land as shown on the conceptual rezoning site plan entitled “1736 Oak 

Road SW”, sealed and dated 2-8-2021 (stamped received 2-12-2021) in Exhibit “A”, a 

copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference is hereby changed 

from OP (Office-Professional) District to RS-5 (Single-family Residential) District. This 

action is subject to the attachment of the following conditions (1-7): 

CONDITIONS: 

1. The property shall be developed in accordance with the conceptual rezoning 

site plan entitled “1736 Oak Road SW”, sealed and dated 2-8-2021 (stamped 

received 2-12-2021), with modifications permitted to meet conditions of zoning 

or State, County, and City regulations. Substantial variation from the 

conceptual rezoning site plan, as determined by the Director of Planning and 

Development will require Mayor and Council approval. 

2. All lots shall connect to sanitary sewer. 



 

ORD 2021-12     #RZ 21-03  Page 3 of 8 
 

3. In consideration of approval of the variance from Sec. 201-4.3.G.7, the 

applicant shall be required to use two 8’ wide insulated carriage style garage 

doors for each dwelling as per Exhibit “B”.  

4. A Property Owner’s Association shall be established for the continuous 

maintenance of open space, stormwater detention facility, and entrance signage. 

5. Twenty (20) percent of the total site area must be conserved as open space and 

subject to the Open Space regulations of Sec. 401-2 of Chapter 4 of the 

Snellville Unified Development Ordinance. 

6. Subdivision entrance signage (if any) shall be located on Open Space.  

7. Signs higher than 15 feet or larger than 225 square feet are prohibited. 

Section 2.  (a) The requested variance from Sec. 201-4.3.G.7 to allow two eight (8) 

feet wide carriage style garage doors on a typical forty (40) feet wide house plan is 

approved, subject to Condition #3 (above).  

(b) The requested variances from Sec. 201-4.3.G.6 requiring garage doors facing a 

street must be located at least ten (10) feet behind the front wall plane, not including front 

porches is denied. 

Section 3.  The changes in zoning classification are to be noted on the Official 

Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia as approved by the Mayor and Council as 

soon as reasonably possible following the adoption of this Ordinance.  The Official Zoning 

Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia, shall also be amended with an editorial note 

specifying the date these Snellville zoning amendments were approved by the Mayor and 

Council and specifying the parcels affected by this Ordinance.  Until the changes are 

indicated on the Official Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia, as approved by the 



 

ORD 2021-12     #RZ 21-03  Page 4 of 8 
 

Mayor and Council, this Ordinance shall govern over Official Zoning Map of the City of 

Snellville, Georgia approved by the Mayor and Council to the extent of any discrepancy 

between this Ordinance and the Official Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia 

approved by the Mayor and Council. 

 Section 4. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 5.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council 

that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are or were, 

upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, enforceable and 

constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause 

or phrase of this Ordinance.  It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Mayor 

and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 



 

ORD 2021-12     #RZ 21-03  Page 5 of 8 
 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 6.  Penalties in effect for violations of Chapter 1 of the Code of 

Ordinances, City of Snellville, Georgia at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance 

shall be and are hereby made applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force 

and effect. 

 Section 7.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed 

 Section 8.   This Ordinance was adopted on __________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated herein. 

 
 
 

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



 

ORD 2021-12     #RZ 21-03  Page 6 of 8 
 

ORDAINED this ______ day of April, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



 

ORD 2021-12     #RZ 21-03  Page 7 of 8 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
  





 

ORD 2021-12     #RZ 21-03  Page 8 of 8 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 





 

ORD 2021-12     #RZ 21-03  Page 1 of 5 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-12 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO DENY THE REQUEST TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING 
MAP OF THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, AS AMENDED, FOR A 1.17± 
ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN LAND LOT 24 OF THE 5TH LAND 
DISTRICT, GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA, 1736 OAK ROAD, SNELLVILLE, 
GEORGIA; TO DENY VARIANCES; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
 
CASE NUMBER: #RZ 21-03 
 
SIZE: 1.17± Acres 
 
LOCATION: 1736 Oak Road, Snellville, Georgia 
 
TAX PARCEL: R5024 175 
 
CURRENT ZONING MAP: OP (Office-Professional) District 
  
REQUESTED ZONING MAP 
AMENDMENT: RS-5 (Single-family Residential) District 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: 5-Lot Single-family Detached Residential 
 Subdivision 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: Oak Road, LLC 
 Lawrenceville, Georgia 
 
APPLICANT/CONTACT: Roger Fisher 
 Fisher Allen Group, LLC 
 404-391-6538 or Roger@fisherallengroup.com 
  
  

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the 

Mayor and Council thereof; and, 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

deny RZ 21-03, which requested to amend the official zoning map as it applies to the 



 

ORD 2021-12     #RZ 21-03  Page 2 of 5 
 

1.17± acre tract of land located at 1736 Oak Road, Snellville, Georgia (Tax Parcel R5024 

175) for a 5-lot single-family detached residential subdivision; and, 

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

deny variances requested by the Applicant as it applies to the 1.17± acre tract of land 

located at 1736 Oak Road, Snellville, Georgia (Tax Parcel R5024 175) for a 5-lot single-

family detached residential subdivision; and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.  For reasons stated in the public hearing and upon a review of the 

application submitted by the Applicant, the request for a change to the Official Zoning 

Map for the City of Snellville, Georgia from OP (Office Professional) District to RS-5 

(Single-family Residential) District for the 1.17± acre tract of land as shown on the 

conceptual rezoning site plan entitled “1736 Oak Road SW”, sealed and dated 2-8-2021 

(stamped received 2-12-2021) in Exhibit “A”, a copy of which is attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by reference is hereby denied. 

Section 2.  (a) The requested variance from Sec. 201-4.3.G.7 to allow two eight 

(8) feet wide carriage style garage doors on a typical forty (40) feet wide house plan is 

denied.  

(b) The requested variance from Sec. 201-4.3.G.6 requiring garage doors facing a 

street must be located at least ten (10) feet behind the front wall plane, not including front 

porches is denied. 



 

ORD 2021-12     #RZ 21-03  Page 3 of 5 
 

 Section 3. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 4.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and 

Council that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are 

or were, upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, 

enforceable and constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance.  It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the 

Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other 

section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 



 

ORD 2021-12     #RZ 21-03  Page 4 of 5 
 

Section 5.  Penalties in effect for violations of the Chapter 1 of the Code of 

Ordinances, City of Snellville, Georgia at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance 

shall be and are hereby made applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force 

and effect. 

 Section 6.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed 

 Section 7.   This Ordinance was adopted on __________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated 

herein. 

 
 
 

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



 

ORD 2021-12     #RZ 21-03  Page 5 of 5 
 

ORDAINED this ______ day of April, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

 



 

ORD 2021-13     #LUP 21-03  Page 1 of 6 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-13 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE 2040 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE 
LAND USE MAP FOR THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, FOR A 1.17± ACRE 
TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN LAND LOT 24 OF THE 5TH LAND DISTRICT, 
GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA, 1736 OAK ROAD, SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA; 
TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; 
TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 
CASE NUMBER: #LUP 21-03 
 
SIZE: 1.17± Acres 
 
LOCATION: 1736 Oak Road, Snellville, Georgia 
 
TAX PARCEL: R5024 075 
 
CURRENT FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP DESIGNATION: Office-Professional 
 
REQUESTED FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP AMENDMENT: Medium-Density Residential 
 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: 5-Lot Single-family Detached Residential 
 Subdivision 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: Oak Road, LLC 
 Lawrenceville, Georgia 
 
APPLICANT/CONTACT: Roger Fisher 
 Fisher Allen Group, LLC 
 404-391-6538 or Roger@fisherallengroup.com 
 

 

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the Mayor 

and Council thereof; and 



 

ORD 2021-13     #LUP 21-03  Page 2 of 6 
 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

amend the designated land use as it applies to the 1.17± acre tract of land located at 1736 

Oak Road, Snellville, Georgia (Tax Parcel R5024 175) for a 5-lot single-family detached 

residential subdivision; and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.    The future land use designation of the 1.17± acre tract of land as 

shown on the conceptual rezoning site plan entitled “1736 Oak Road SW”, sealed and 

dated 2-8-2021 (stamped received 2-12-2021) in Exhibit “A”, a copy of which is attached 

hereto and incorporated herein by reference is hereby changed from Office-Professional 

to Medium-Density Residential. 

This change in future land use is to be noted on the City of Snellville 2040 

Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map, as previously amended and as approved by 

the Mayor and Council as soon as reasonably possible following the adoption of this 

Ordinance. The future land use map shall also be amended with an editorial note 

specifying the date this Snellville Land Use Plan Amendment was approved by the 

Mayor and Council and specifying the parcel affected by this Ordinance. Until the change 

is indicated on the City of Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map 

approved by the Mayor and Council, this Ordinance shall govern over the City of 

Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map approved by the Mayor and 

Council to the extent of any discrepancy between this Ordinance and the City of 



 

ORD 2021-13     #LUP 21-03  Page 3 of 6 
 

Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map approved by the Mayor and 

Council. 

Section 2. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 3.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and 

Council that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are 

or were, upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, 

enforceable and constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the 

Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other 

section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 



 

ORD 2021-13     #LUP 21-03  Page 4 of 6 
 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 4.  Penalties in effect for violations of the Chapter 1 of the Code of 

Ordinances, City of Snellville, Georgia at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance 

shall be and are hereby made applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force 

and effect. 

 Section 5.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed. 

 Section 6.   This Ordinance was adopted on _________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated 

herein. 

 
 
 
 

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



 

ORD 2021-13     #LUP 21-03  Page 5 of 6 
 

ORDAINED this _____ day of April, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles. Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



 

ORD 2021-13     #LUP 21-03  Page 6 of 6 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 





 

ORD 2021-13     #LUP 21-03  Page 1 of 5 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-13 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO DENY THE REQUEST TO AMEND THE 2040 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR THE CITY OF 
SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, FOR A 1.17± ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN 
LAND LOT 24 OF THE 5TH LAND DISTRICT, GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA, 
1736 OAK ROAD, SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; 
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 
CASE NUMBER: #LUP 21-03 
 
SIZE: 1.17± Acres 
 
LOCATION: 1736 Oak Road, Snellville, Georgia 
 
TAX PARCEL: R5024 075 
 
CURRENT FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP DESIGNATION: Office-Professional 
 
REQUESTED FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP AMENDMENT: Medium-Density Residential 
 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: 5-Lot Single-family Detached Residential 
 Subdivision 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: Oak Road, LLC 
 Lawrenceville, Georgia 
 
APPLICANT/CONTACT: Roger Fisher 
 Fisher Allen group, LLC 
 404-391-6538 or Roger@fisherallengroup.com 
 

 

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the Mayor 

and Council thereof; and 



 

ORD 2021-13     #LUP 21-03  Page 2 of 5 
 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

deny LUP 21-02, which requested to amend the designated future land use map as it 

applies to the 1.17± acre tract of land located at 1736 Oak Road, Snellville, Georgia (Tax 

Parcel R5024 175) for a 5-lot single-family detached residential subdivision; and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.    For reasons stated in the public hearing and upon review of the 

application submitted by Applicant, the request for a change in the future land use map 

designation from Office-Professional to Medium-Density Residential for the 1.17± acre 

tract of land as shown on the conceptual rezoning site plan entitled “1736 Oak Road 

SW”, sealed and dated 2-8-2021 (stamped received 2-12-2021) in Exhibit “A”, a copy of 

which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference is hereby denied. 

Section 2. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 3.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and 

Council that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are 

or were, upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, 

enforceable and constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, 



 

ORD 2021-13     #LUP 21-03  Page 3 of 5 
 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the 

Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other 

section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 4.  Penalties in effect for violations of the Chapter 1 of the Code of 

Ordinances, City of Snellville, Georgia at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance 

shall be and are hereby made applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force 

and effect. 

 Section 5.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed. 

 Section 6.   This Ordinance was adopted on _________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated 

herein. 

 
[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



 

ORD 2021-13     #LUP 21-03  Page 4 of 5 
 

ORDAINED this _____ day of April, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



 

ORD 2021-13     #LUP 21-03  Page 5 of 5 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 



Agenda Item Summary 
 

 
TO: The Mayor and Council 
 
FROM: Jason Thompson, Director 

Department of Planning and Development 
 
DATE: April 12, 2021 
 
RE: #ANX 21-01 RZ 21-04 LUP 21-04 
 
DEVELOPMENT: Office Building and Associated Parking for Future Expansion of 

TOMCO2 Systems Facility – 2.70± Acres at 3320 Brushy Fork Road, 
Loganville, Georgia 

   
STATUS: 1st Reading 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Petition for annexation to the municipal boundaries of the City of Snellville; 
applications to amend the Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use 
Map and Official Zoning Map for a 14,300 sq. ft. one-story office building and 
associated parking for the future expansion of the adjacent TOMCO2 Systems 
facility. 

 
Financial Impact:  Site Development Permit fees; Building 

Permit fees; Real Property Taxes 
 
Planning Commission 
Meeting: March 23, 2021 
 
Recommendations: 
 

 LUP 21-04 RZ 21-04 

Planning Department Denial (Industrial Mixed-Use) 
Approval (Office Professional) 

Denial (LM District) 
Approval (OP District) 

Planning Commission Approval (Office Professional) Denial (LM District) 
Approval (OP District) 

 
Mayor and Council 
Meetings: April 12, 2021 (1st Reading)  

April 26, 2021 (2nd Reading and Public Hearing) 
 
Action requested: Consideration and Waive the 1st Reading 
 
 

City of Snellville  2342 Oak Road  Snellville, GA 30078  770.985.3514 www.snellville.org 



 
 
 
 
2.70± Acre Site at 3320 Brushy Fork Road, Loganville, Georgia  
Case #ANX 21-01 RZ 21-04 LUP 21-04 
April 12, 2021  
Page… 2 
 
 
Case Documents (website link): 
 

• Letter of Intent (2-10-2021) 
• #ANX 21-01 Application (2-10-2021) 
• #RZ 21-04 Application (2-10-2021) 
• #LUP 21-04 Application (2-10-2021) 
• Property Survey and Legal Description (2-10-2021) 
• Conceptual Site Plan (2-10-2021) 
• 3-23-2021 Planning Department Case Summary & Analysis (3-2-2021) 
• Unofficial 3-23-2021 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes 

(3-29-2021) 
• 3-23-2021 Planning Commission Case Report (3-29-2021) 
• 04-12-2021 and 04-26-2021 Planning Department Case Summary & 

Analysis with Planning Commission Report (3-29-2021) 
• Conditions Only Recommendations (3-29-2021) 
• #ANX 21-01 Approval Draft Ordinance (4-6-2021) 
• #LUP 21-04 Approval Draft Ordinance (4-6-2021) 
• #RZ 21-04 Approval Draft Ordinance (4-6-2021) 
• #ANX 21-01 Denial Draft Ordinance (4-6-2021) 
• #LUP 21-04 Denial Draft Ordinance (4-6-2021) 
• #RZ 21-04 Denial Draft Ordinance (4-6-2021)  

https://www.snellville.org/pc-agendas-minutes
https://www.snellville.org/2017-agenda-packet-materials
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/anx-21-01-rz-21-04-lup-21-04/anx-21-01-rz-21-04-lup-21-04-conditions-only-3-29-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/anx-21-01-rz-21-04-lup-21-04/anx-21-01-rz-21-04-lup-21-04-staff-report-03-29-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/anx-21-01-rz-21-04-lup-21-04/pc-case-report-anx-21-01-rz-21-04-lup-21-04-mar-29-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/anx-21-01-rz-21-04-lup-21-04/letter-of-intent-2-10-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/anx-21-01-rz-21-04-lup-21-04/anx-21-01-application-2-10-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/anx-21-01-rz-21-04-lup-21-04/rz-21-04-application.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/anx-21-01-rz-21-04-lup-21-04/lup-21-04-application.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/anx-21-01-rz-21-04-lup-21-04/property-survey-2-10-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/anx-21-01-rz-21-04-lup-21-04/tomco2-office-building-concept_02-04-21.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/anx-21-01-rz-21-04-lup-21-04/anx-21-01-rz-21-04-lup-21-04-staff-report-02-22-2021.pdf


 

ORD 2021-14     #ANX 21-01  Page 1 of 7 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-14 

  
 AN ORDINANCE TO ANNEX THE 2.704± ACRE TRACT OF LAND 

LOCATED IN LAND LOT 99 OF THE 5TH LAND DISTRICT, GWINNETT 

COUNTY, GEORGIA, AT THE REQUEST OF 100% OF THE OWNERS OF SAID 

PROPERTY INTO THE MUNICIPAL BOUNDARY OF THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, 

GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA AND EXTENDING THE BOUNDARY LIMITS 

OF SAID CITY LIMITS, AND GRANTING TO SAID REAL PROPERTY AND TO 

ALL FUTURE INHABITANTS OF SAID REAL PROPERTY ALL OF THE RIGHTS 

AND PRIVILEDGES OF OTHER CITIZENS AND BINDING SAID FUTURE 

INHABITANTS BY ALL OF THE ACTIONS AND ORDINANCES OF SAID CITY; 

TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; 

TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

CASE NUMBER: #ANX 21-01 
 
PROPERTY OWNERS: Stephen Ray Moon and Walter Major Moon 
 Braselton, Georgia  
 
SIZE: 2.704± Acres 
 
LOCATION: 3320 Brushy Fork Road, Loganville, GA 
 
TAX PARCEL: R5099 003  
 
APPLICANT: For TOMCO2 Systems Company 
 Shane Lanham, Esq. 
 Mahaffey Pickens Tucker, LLP 
 770-232-0000 or slanham@mptlawfirm.com 
 



 

ORD 2021-14     #ANX 21-01  Page 2 of 7 
 

DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: Office Building and Associated Parking for 
 Future Expansion of TOMCO2 Systems 
 Facility 
 

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the 

Mayor and Council thereof; and 

WHEREAS, O.C.G.A. §36-36-21 authorizes the City of Snellville to annex to the 

existing corporate limits thereof all or any portion of unincorporated property where 

100% of the land owners request annexation and said property is contiguous to the 

existing limits at the time of such annexation upon compliance with the procedures set 

forth in the statute; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Snellville received an application for annexation 

including the Petition for Annexation under the 100 percent (%) method of annexation by 

property owners Stephen Ray Moon and Walter Major Moon; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Snellville did not receive any objection from Gwinnett 

County after being served with proper notice of the proposed annexation; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Snellville desires to annex said property located in 

unincorporated Gwinnett County, Georgia into the City pursuant to O.C.G.A. §36-36-21 

and has complied with the statutory provisions thereof; and 

WHEREAS, on the 26th day of April, 2021 a Public Hearing was held at 7:30 

p.m. in the Council Chambers of the Snellville City Hall building.  The purpose of the 

Public Hearing was to give all interested persons the right to appear and be heard on the 

proposed annexation of 2.704 acres of land, more or less, by the City of Snellville, 

Georgia, more fully described in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made part hereof; and 



 

ORD 2021-14     #ANX 21-01  Page 3 of 7 
 

WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING 

AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority 

thereof: 

Section 1. That the real property described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto is 

annexed into the City of Snellville, Gwinnett County, Georgia, and that the boundary 

limits of the City of Snellville are hereby extended to include the real property described 

in Exhibit “A” within the city limits and the same shall hereafter be included within the 

territorial limits of said City, and said land and future inhabitants thereof shall hereafter 

be entitled to all rights and privileges of other citizens of the City, and shall be bound by 

the acts and ordinances of said City.  

Section 2. The City Clerk of the City of Snellville is instructed to file an 

identification of the annexed property with the Department of Community Affairs and the 

county governing authority within 30 days of the last day of the quarter in which the 

annexation becomes effective as set forth in Section 7.   

Section 3. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 4.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and 

Council that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are 

or were, upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, 

enforceable and constitutional. 



 

ORD 2021-14     #ANX 21-01  Page 4 of 7 
 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance.  It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the 

Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other 

section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

 Section 5.  Penalties in effect for violations of Chapter 1 of the Code of 

Ordinances, City of Snellville, Georgia at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance 

shall be and are hereby made applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force 

and effect.  

Section 6.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed. 



 

ORD 2021-14     #ANX 21-01  Page 5 of 7 
 

 Section 7.   This Ordinance is adopted on _________________, 2021 the 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be on May 1, 2021 and for ad valorem tax purposes 

on December 31, 2021. 

 

 

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE] 



 

ORD 2021-14     #ANX 21-01  Page 6 of 7 
 

ORDAINED this _______ day of April, 2021. 
   
  
            
            
    
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

        



 

ORD 2021-14     #ANX 21-01  Page 7 of 7 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Gwinnett County Tax Parcel: R5099 003 
Size: 2.704 Acres (+/-) 
SITUS Address: 3320 Brushy Fork Road, Loganville, Georgia 
Property Owners: Stephen Ray Moon and Walter Major Moon 
 
All that tract or parcel of land lying in Land Lot 99 of the 5th District of Gwinnett 
County, Georgia; and being more particularly described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the west corner of the mitered intersection of the east right-of-way of 
Rosebud Road (80’ R/W) with the southwestern right-of-way of Brushy Fork Road (60’ 
R/W), said point being the POINT OF BEGINNING: 
 
Thence traveling along said mitered intersection NORTH 89 Degrees 03 Minutes 25 
Seconds EAST for a distance of 95.40 feet to a point on the southwesterly right-of-way of 
Brushy Fork Road; thence traveling along the southwesterly right-of-way of Brushy Fork 
Road the following three (3) courses and distances; SOUTH 66 Degrees 06 Minutes 18 
Seconds EAST for a distance of 56.80 feet to a point; thence along a curve to the right 
with an arc length of 263.44 feet and a radius of 448.25 feet, being subtended by a chord 
of SOUTH 49 Degrees 11 Minutes 01 Seconds EAST a distance of 259.66 feet to a point; 
thence SOUTH 32 degrees 19 Minutes 01 Seconds EAST for a distance of 327.74 feet to 
an iron pin found; thence leaving said right-of-way NORTH 68 Degrees 20 Minutes 59 
Seconds WEST for a distance of 604.36 feet to an iron pin found on the easterly right-of-
way of Rosebud Road; thence traveling along said right-of-way along a curve to the left 
with an arc length of 232.81 feet and a radius of 803.44 feet, being subtended by a chord 
of NORTH 10 Degrees 23 Minutes 35 Seconds EAST a distance of 232.00 feet to a 
point; thence continuing along said right-of-way NORTH 02 degrees 48 Minutes 07 
Seconds EAST for a distance of 17.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
Said tract or parcel of land contains 2.704 acres and is depicted on that certain 
ALTA/NSPS plat of survey prepared by LandPro Surveying and Mapping, Inc., sealed 
and certified by James H. Rader, GRLS No. 3033, dated January 11, 2021.  
 

 

 

 

 

[BOUNDARY SURVEY ON NEXT PAGE] 

  
 





 

ORD 2021-14     #ANX 21-01  Page 1 of 6 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-14 

  
 AN ORDINANCE TO DENY THE REQUEST TO ANNEX THE 2.704± ACRE 

TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN LAND LOT 99 OF THE 5TH LAND DISTRICT, 

GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA, AT THE REQUEST OF 100% OF THE OWNERS 

OF SAID PROPERTY INTO THE MUNICIPAL BOUNDARY OF THE CITY OF 

SNELLVILLE, GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA AND EXTENDING THE 

BOUNDARY LIMITS OF SAID CITY LIMITS, TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

CASE NUMBER: #ANX 21-01 
 
PROPERTY OWNERS: Stephen Ray Moon and Walter Major Moon 
 Braselton, Georgia  
 
SIZE: 2.704± Acres 
 
LOCATION: 3320 Brushy Fork Road, Loganville, GA 
 
TAX PARCEL: R5099 003  
 
APPLICANT: For TOMCO2 Systems Company 
 Shane Lanham, Esq. 
 Mahaffey Pickens Tucker, LLP 
 770-232-0000 or slanham@mptlawfirm.com 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: Office Building and Associated Parking for 
 Future Expansion of TOMCO2 Systems 
 Facility 
 
 

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the 

Mayor and Council thereof; and 



 

ORD 2021-14     #ANX 21-01  Page 2 of 6 
 

WHEREAS, O.C.G.A. §36-36-21 authorizes the City of Snellville to annex to the 

existing corporate limits thereof all or any portion of unincorporated property where 

100% of the land owners request annexation and said property is contiguous to the 

existing limits at the time of such annexation upon compliance with the procedures set 

forth in the statute; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Snellville received an application for annexation 

including the Petition for Annexation under the 100 percent (%) method of annexation by 

property owners Stephen Ray Moon and Walter Major Moon; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Snellville did not receive any objection from Gwinnett 

County after being served with proper notice of the proposed annexation; and 

WHEREAS, on the 26th day of April, 2021 a Public Hearing was held at 7:30 

p.m. in the Council Chambers of the Snellville City Hall building.  The purpose of the 

Public Hearing was to give all interested persons the right to appear and be heard on the 

proposed annexation of 2.704 acres of land, more or less, by the City of Snellville, 

Georgia, more fully described in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made part hereof; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Snellville desires to deny ANX 21-01, which requested  

annexation of said property located in unincorporated Gwinnett County, Georgia into the 

City pursuant to O.C.G.A. §36-36-21; and 

WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof: 



 

ORD 2021-14     #ANX 21-01  Page 3 of 6 
 

Section 1. For reasons stated in the public hearing and upon review of the 

application submitted by Applicant, the request for annexation of said property located in 

unincorporated Gwinnett County, Georgia into the corporate limits of the City of 

Snellville is hereby denied.  

Section 2. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 3.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and 

Council that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are 

or were, upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, 

enforceable and constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance.  It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the 

Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other 

section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 



 

ORD 2021-14     #ANX 21-01  Page 4 of 6 
 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

 Section 4.  Penalties in effect for violations of Chapter 1 of the Code of 

Ordinances, City of Snellville, Georgia at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance 

shall be and are hereby made applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force 

and effect.  

Section 5.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed. 

 Section 6.   This Ordinance is adopted on ____________, 2021. The effective 

date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated herein. 

 

 

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE] 
 
 



 

ORD 2021-14     #ANX 21-01  Page 5 of 6 
 

ORDAINED this _____ day of April, 2021. 
   
  
            
             
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

        



 

ORD 2021-14     #ANX 21-01  Page 6 of 6 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Gwinnett County Tax Parcel: R5099 003 
Size: 2.704 Acres (+/-) 
SITUS Address: 3320 Brushy Fork Road, Loganville, Georgia 
Property Owners: Stephen Ray Moon and Walter Major Moon 
 
All that tract or parcel of land lying in Land Lot 99 of the 5th District of Gwinnett 
County, Georgia; and being more particularly described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the west corner of the mitered intersection of the east right-of-way of 
Rosebud Road (80’ R/W) with the southwestern right-of-way of Brushy Fork Road (60’ 
R/W), said point being the POINT OF BEGINNING: 
 
Thence traveling along said mitered intersection NORTH 89 Degrees 03 Minutes 25 
Seconds EAST for a distance of 95.40 feet to a point on the southwesterly right-of-way of 
Brushy Fork Road; thence traveling along the southwesterly right-of-way of Brushy Fork 
Road the following three (3) courses and distances; SOUTH 66 Degrees 06 Minutes 18 
Seconds EAST for a distance of 56.80 feet to a point; thence along a curve to the right 
with an arc length of 263.44 feet and a radius of 448.25 feet, being subtended by a chord 
of SOUTH 49 Degrees 11 Minutes 01 Seconds EAST a distance of 259.66 feet to a point; 
thence SOUTH 32 degrees 19 Minutes 01 Seconds EAST for a distance of 327.74 feet to 
an iron pin found; thence leaving said right-of-way NORTH 68 Degrees 20 Minutes 59 
Seconds WEST for a distance of 604.36 feet to an iron pin found on the easterly right-of-
way of Rosebud Road; thence traveling along said right-of-way along a curve to the left 
with an arc length of 232.81 feet and a radius of 803.44 feet, being subtended by a chord 
of NORTH 10 Degrees 23 Minutes 35 Seconds EAST a distance of 232.00 feet to a 
point; thence continuing along said right-of-way NORTH 02 degrees 48 Minutes 07 
Seconds EAST for a distance of 17.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
Said tract or parcel of land contains 2.704 acres and is depicted on that certain 
ALTA/NSPS plat of survey prepared by LandPro Surveying and Mapping, Inc., sealed 
and certified by James H. Rader, GRLS No. 3033, dated January 11, 2021.  
 

 

 

 

[BOUNDARY SURVEY ON NEXT PAGE] 

  
 



 

ORD 2021-15     #RZ 21-04  Page 1 of 7 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-15 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, AS AMENDED, FOR A 2.704± ACRE TRACT OF LAND 
LOCATED IN LAND LOT 99 OF THE 5TH LAND DISTRICT, GWINNETT 
COUNTY, GEORGIA, 3320 BRUSHY FORK ROAD, LOGANVILLE; TO ADD 
CONDITIONS AFFECTING THE PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; 
TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; 
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
 
CASE NUMBER: #RZ 21-04 
 
SIZE: 2.704± Acres 
 
LOCATION: 3320 Brushy Fork Road, Loganville, 
 Georgia 
 
TAX PARCEL: R5099 003 
 
REQUESTED ZONING MAP 
AMENDMENT: LM (Light Manufacturing) District 
 
APPROVED ZONING MAP OP (Office Professional) District 
AMENDMENT: 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: Office Building and Associated Parking for 
 Future Expansion of TOMCO2 Systems 
 Facility 
 
PROPERTY OWNERS: Stephen Ray Moon and Walter Major Moon 
 Braselton, Georgia  
 
APPLICANT/CONTACT: For TOMCO2 Systems Company 
 Shane Lanham, Esq. 
 Mahaffey Pickens Tucker, LLP 
 770-232-0000 or slanham@mptlawfirm.com 
  

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the 

Mayor and Council thereof; and, 



 

ORD 2021-15     #RZ 21-04  Page 2 of 7 
 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

amend its official zoning map as it applies to the 2.704± acre tract of land located at 3320 

Brushy Fork Road, Loganville, Georgia (Tax Parcel R5099 003) for a 14,300 sq. ft. 

office building and associated for the future expansion of TOMCO2 Systems facility; 

and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.  The Official Zoning Map for the City of Snellville, Georgia for the 

2.704± acre tract of land as shown on the conceptual rezoning site plan entitled 

“TOMCO2 Office Building”, sealed and dated 2-8-2021 (stamped received 2-10-2021), 

in Exhibit “A”, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference is 

hereby amended and changed to OP (Office-Professional) District. This action is subject 

to the attachment of the following conditions (1-4): 

CONDITIONS: 

1. The property shall be developed in accordance with the conceptual site plan 

entitled “TOMCO2 Office Building”, sealed and dated 2-8-2021 (stamped 

received 2-10-2021), with modifications permitted to meet conditions of 

zoning or State, County, and City regulations. Substantial variation from the 

conceptual rezoning site plan, as determined by the Director of Planning and 

Development will require Mayor and Council approval. 

 



 

ORD 2021-15     #RZ 21-04  Page 3 of 7 
 

2. Use of and development of the property shall conform to the use provisions 

and zoning district regulations for the OP District. 

3. Interparcel access and connectivity to the adjacent TOMCO2 Systems Facility 

property to the south (Parcel R5099 005) is prohibited; however, a 

pedestrian/golf cart sidewalk no wider than ten (10) feet in width shall be 

allowed to connect to the adjacent TOMCO2 property. 

4. Signs higher than 15 feet or larger than 225 square feet are prohibited. 

Section 2.  The changes in zoning classification are to be noted on the Official 

Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia as approved by the Mayor and Council as 

soon as reasonably possible following the adoption of this Ordinance.  The Official 

Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia, shall also be amended with an editorial 

note specifying the date these Snellville zoning amendments were approved by the Mayor 

and Council and specifying the parcels affected by this Ordinance.  Until the changes are 

indicated on the Official Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia, as approved by 

the Mayor and Council, this Ordinance shall govern over Official Zoning Map of the City 

of Snellville, Georgia approved by the Mayor and Council to the extent of any 

discrepancy between this Ordinance and the Official Zoning Map of the City of 

Snellville, Georgia approved by the Mayor and Council. 

 Section 3. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 4.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and 

Council that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are 



 

ORD 2021-15     #RZ 21-04  Page 4 of 7 
 

or were, upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, 

enforceable and constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance.  It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the 

Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other 

section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 5.  Penalties in effect for violations of Chapter 1 of the Code of 

Ordinances, City of Snellville, Georgia at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance 

shall be and are hereby made applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force 

and effect. 



 

ORD 2021-15     #RZ 21-04  Page 5 of 7 
 

 Section 6.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed 

 Section 7.   This Ordinance was adopted on __________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated 

herein. 

 
 
 

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



 

ORD 2021-15     #RZ 21-04  Page 6 of 7 
 

ORDAINED this ______ day of April, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



 

ORD 2021-15     #RZ 21-04  Page 7 of 7 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 



R
O

S
E

B
U

D
 R

O
A

D

(8
0

' R
/
W

)

BRU
SH

Y FO
RK RO

A
D

(60' R/W
)

M
ID

W
A

Y
 R

O
A

D

R
O

Z
E
N

A
 P

L

PROPOSED
OFFICE BUILDING

14,300 S.F.

UTILITY DISCLAIMER:

LOCATION MAP

Civil Engineering /
Site  Planning /

Land Development Services

Buford, GA 30519

(Ph) 678.207.6830
jevans@evansdg.com

PROJECT NAME

CHECKED BYDESIGN BY DRAWN BY

DATE:

Not Released For Construction

Released For Construction

OWNER/DEVELOPER

THESE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS AND
PERMITTED REPRODUCTIONS, IN WHOLE OR
IN PART, ARE INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE AND
ARE THE SOLE PROPERTY OF EVANS DESIGN
GROUP, INC. UNLESS OTHERWISE AGREED TO.
THEY SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR
CONVEYED IN ANY MANNER NOR ARE THEY
TO BE USED FOR ANY OTHER PROJECTS
OTHER THAN THAT SPECIFICALLY INDICATED
HEREIN WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION
FROM AND DUE COMPENSATION TO EVANS
DESIGN GROUP, INC.

..ALL RIGHTS RESERVED..
EVANS DESIGN GROUP, INC

C COPYRIGHT 2020

REVISIONS

JOB NUMBER:

Evans Design Group, Inc.

SHEET TITLE

4755 Summer Song Court

ENGINEER:

24-HR CONTACT:

OWNER/DEVELOPER:

C-4

JMEJME JME

01-25-21

21-005

 3320 BRUSHY FORK RD,
L.L. 99, 5TH DIST.,

PARCEL 3, GWINNETT
COUNTY, GEORGIA

 TOMC02 OFFICE
BUILDING

 

SITE
PLAN

SITE

ZONING DATA TABLE:

PARKING REQUIREMENTS:

GRAPHIC SCALE

1 inch =        ft.

( IN FEET )

0 90603015

30

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF SQUARE ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF 1" OTP ON LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMANENT CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT D.B. 58015, PG. 514

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY DRIVEWAY EASEMENT D.B. 58015, PG. 520

AutoCAD SHX Text
117,795.3 SQ. FT. 2.704 ACRES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 32°19'01" E  327.74'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 68°20'59" W  604.36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89°03'25" E  95.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 66°06'18" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
56.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 02°48'07" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARC LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
263.44'

AutoCAD SHX Text
448.25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
259.66'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 49°11'01" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
232.81'

AutoCAD SHX Text
803.44'

AutoCAD SHX Text
232.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 10°23'35" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F TOMCO EQUIPMENT CO P.B. U, PG. 158

AutoCAD SHX Text
POB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELECOM VAULT TO BE RELOCATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
35' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
35' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' LANDSCAPE STRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' LANDSCAPE STRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' LANDSCAPE STRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' LANDSCAPE STRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' LANDSCAPE STRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' LANDSCAPE STRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED R/W DEDICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED R/W DEDICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 8' CONCRETE SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 7' CONCRETE SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 6' CONCRETE SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 6' CONCRETE SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 6' CONCRETE SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 6' CONCRETE SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 6' CONCRETE SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN ADDITION TO SHOWING THE STRUCTURES TO BE BUILT UNDER THIS CONTRACT, THE DRAWINGS SHOW CERTAIN INFORMATION OBTAINED BY THE ENGINEER REGARDING THE PIPES, POLE LINES, CONDUITS, AND OTHER STRUCTURES WHICH EXIST ALONG THE LINE OF THE WORK, BOTH AT AND BELOW THE SURFACE OF THE GROUND.  THE ENGINEER AND THE OWNER EXPRESSLY DISCLAIM ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF THE INFORMATION GIVEN ON THE DRAWINGS WITH REGARD TO EXISTING STRUCTURES, AND THE CONTRACTOR WILL NOT BE ENTITLED TO ANY EXTRA COMPENSATION ON ACCOUNT OF ANY INACCURACY OR INCOMPLETENESS OF SUCH INFORMATION, SAID STRUCTURES BEING INDICATED ONLY FOR THE CONVENIENCE OF THE CONTRACTOR, WHO MUST VERIFY THE INFORMATION TO HIS OWN SATISFACTION.  THE GIVING OF THIS INFORMATION UPON THE CONTRACT DRAWINGS WILL NOT RELIEVE THE CONTRACTOR OF HIS OBLIGATION TO SUPPORT AND PROTECT ALL PIPES, CONDUITS, AND OTHER STRUCTURES.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL LOCATE ALL UNDERGROUND OBSTRUCTIONS PRIOR TO EXCAVATION SO AS TO PREVENT ANY DAMAGE TO THOSE SERVICES OR OTHER UTILITIES.  ANY SUCH DAMAGES MUST BE REPAIRED WITHOUT DELAY AND THE COST OF SUCH REPAIRS MUST BE BORNE BY THE CONTRACTOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO. 26681

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROFESSIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
GSWCC LEVEL II CERT. # 10877

AutoCAD SHX Text
678.207.6830 (Ph)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUFORD, GA 30519

AutoCAD SHX Text
4755 SUMMER SONG COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTACT: JON M. EVANS, P.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVANS DESIGN GROUP, INC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURRENT ZONING:

AutoCAD SHX Text
R100 (GWINNETT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ZONING:

AutoCAD SHX Text
LM (SNELLVILLE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM LOT AREA:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 ACRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM LOT WIDTH:

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM ROAD FRONTAGE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
25 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
40 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAXIMUM COVER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
75% IMPERVIOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING SETBACKS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
50 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
20 FEET (35 FEET ROAD FRONTAGE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
15 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE STRIPS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALONG ROW:

AutoCAD SHX Text
10 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
OTHER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
5 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS PROPERTY DOES NOT LIE IN A 100-YR FLOOD ZONE AS SHOWN ON FIRM COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 315C0131F. DATED SEPTEMBER 29, 2006.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY REQUIREMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAXIMUM PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROVIDED PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICE @ 14,300 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 SPACE PER 300 S.F. (MINIMUM)                   1 SPACE PER 275 S.F. (MAXIMUM)

AutoCAD SHX Text
48

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
48

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
48

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
48*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*INCLUDES 2 A.D.A. SPACE (2 REQUIRED)



 

ORD 2021-15     #RZ 21-04  Page 1 of 6 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-15 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO DENY THE REQUEST TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING 
MAP OF THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, AS AMENDED, FOR A 2.704± 
ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN LAND LOT 99 OF THE 5TH LAND 
DISTRICT, GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA, 3320 BRUSHY FORK ROAD, 
LOGANVILLE; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER 
PURPOSES. 
 
CASE NUMBER: #RZ 21-04 
 
SIZE: 2.704± Acres 
 
LOCATION: 3320 Brushy Fork Road, Loganville, 
 Georgia 
 
TAX PARCEL: R5099 003 
 
REQUESTED ZONING MAP 
AMENDMENT: LM (Light Manufacturing) District 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: Office Building and Associated Parking for 
 Future Expansion of TOMCO2 Systems 
 Facility 
 
PROPERTY OWNERS: Stephen Ray Moon and Walter Major Moon 
 Braselton, Georgia  
 
APPLICANT/CONTACT: For TOMCO2 Systems Company 
 Shane Lanham, Esq. 
 Mahaffey Pickens Tucker, LLP 
 770-232-0000 or slanham@mptlawfirm.com 
  
  

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the 

Mayor and Council thereof; and, 



 

ORD 2021-15     #RZ 21-04  Page 2 of 6 
 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

deny RZ 21-04, which requested to amend the official zoning map as it applies to the 

2.704± acre tract of land located at 3320 Brushy Fork Road, Loganville, Georgia (Tax 

Parcel R5099 003) for a 14,300 sq. ft. office building and associated for the future 

expansion of TOMCO2 Systems facility; and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.  For reasons stated in the public hearing and upon a review of the 

application submitted by the Applicant, the request for a change to the Official Zoning 

Map for the City of Snellville, Georgia to LM (Light Manufacturing) District for the 

2.704± acre tract of land as shown on the conceptual rezoning site plan entitled 

“TOMCO2 Office Building”, sealed and dated 2-8-2021 (stamped received 2-10-2021), 

in Exhibit “A”, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference is 

hereby denied. 

Section 2. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 3.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and 

Council that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are 

or were, upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, 

enforceable and constitutional. 



 

ORD 2021-15     #RZ 21-04  Page 3 of 6 
 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance.  It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the 

Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other 

section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 4.  Penalties in effect for violations of Chapter 1 of the Code of 

Ordinances, City of Snellville, Georgia at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance 

shall be and are hereby made applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force 

and effect. 

 Section 5.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed 



 

ORD 2021-15     #RZ 21-04  Page 4 of 6 
 

 Section 6.   This Ordinance was adopted on __________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated 

herein. 

 
 
 

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



 

ORD 2021-15     #RZ 21-04  Page 5 of 6 
 

ORDAINED this ______ day of April, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



 

ORD 2021-15     #RZ 21-04  Page 6 of 6 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 



 

ORD 2021-16     #LUP 21-04  Page 1 of 6 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-16 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE 2040 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE 
LAND USE MAP FOR THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, FOR A 2.704± 
ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN LAND LOT 99 OF THE 5TH LAND 
DISTRICT, GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA, 3320 BRUSHY FORK ROAD, 
LOGANVILLE, GEORGIA; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL 
CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR 
OTHER PURPOSES. 

 
CASE NUMBER: #LUP 21-04 
 
SIZE: 2.704± Acres 
 
LOCATION: 3320 Brushy Fork Road, Loganville, Georgia 
 
TAX PARCEL: R5099 003 
 
2030 UNIFIED PLAN FUTURE 
DEVELOPMENT MAP (Gw. Co.): Community Mixed-Use 
 
REQUESTED FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP AMENDMENT: Industrial Mixed-Use 
 
APPROVED FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP AMENDMENT: Office-Professional 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: Office Building and Associated Parking for 
 Future Expansion of TOMCO2 Systems 
 Facility 
 
PROPERTY OWNERS: Stephen Ray Moon and Walter Major Moon 
 Braselton, Georgia  
 
APPLICANT/CONTACT: For TOMCO2 Systems Company 
 Shane Lanham, Esq. 
 Mahaffey Pickens Tucker, LLP 
 770-232-0000 or slanham@mptlawfirm.com 
 

 



 

ORD 2021-16     #LUP 21-04  Page 2 of 6 
 

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the Mayor 

and Council thereof; and 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

amend the designated land use as it applies to the 2.704± acre tract of land located at 

3320 Brushy Fork Road, Loganville, Georgia (Tax Parcel R5099 003) for a 14,300 sq. ft. 

office building and associated for the future expansion of TOMCO2 Systems facility; 

and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.    The future land use map designation of the 2.704± acre tract of 

land as shown on the conceptual rezoning site plan entitled “TOMCO2 Office Building”, 

sealed and dated 2-8-2021 (stamped received 2-10-2021), in Exhibit “A”, a copy of 

which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference is hereby designated 

Office-Professional. 

This change in future land use is to be noted on the City of Snellville 2040 

Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map, as previously amended and as approved by 

the Mayor and Council as soon as reasonably possible following the adoption of this 

Ordinance. The future land use map shall also be amended with an editorial note 

specifying the date this Snellville Land Use Plan Amendment was approved by the 

Mayor and Council and specifying the parcel affected by this Ordinance. Until the change 

is indicated on the City of Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map 



 

ORD 2021-16     #LUP 21-04  Page 3 of 6 
 

approved by the Mayor and Council, this Ordinance shall govern over the City of 

Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map approved by the Mayor and 

Council to the extent of any discrepancy between this Ordinance and the City of 

Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map approved by the Mayor and 

Council. 

Section 2. For reasons stated in the public hearing and upon review of the 

application submitted by Applicant, the request for a change in the future land use map 

designation to Industrial Mixed-Use is hereby denied. 

Section 3. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 4.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and 

Council that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are 

or were, upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, 

enforceable and constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the 

Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other 

section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 



 

ORD 2021-16     #LUP 21-04  Page 4 of 6 
 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 5.  Penalties in effect for violations of Chapter 1 of the Code of 

Ordinances, City of Snellville, Georgia at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance 

shall be and are hereby made applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force 

and effect. 

 Section 6.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed. 

 Section 7.   This Ordinance was adopted on _________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated 

herein. 

 
 
 
 

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



 

ORD 2021-16     #LUP 21-04  Page 5 of 6 
 

ORDAINED this _____ day of April, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



 

ORD 2021-16     #LUP 21-04  Page 6 of 6 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 



R
O

S
E

B
U

D
 R

O
A

D

(8
0

' R
/
W

)

BRU
SH

Y FO
RK RO

A
D

(60' R/W
)

M
ID

W
A

Y
 R

O
A

D

R
O

Z
E
N

A
 P

L

PROPOSED
OFFICE BUILDING

14,300 S.F.

UTILITY DISCLAIMER:

LOCATION MAP

Civil Engineering /
Site  Planning /

Land Development Services

Buford, GA 30519

(Ph) 678.207.6830
jevans@evansdg.com

PROJECT NAME

CHECKED BYDESIGN BY DRAWN BY

DATE:

Not Released For Construction

Released For Construction

OWNER/DEVELOPER

THESE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS AND
PERMITTED REPRODUCTIONS, IN WHOLE OR
IN PART, ARE INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE AND
ARE THE SOLE PROPERTY OF EVANS DESIGN
GROUP, INC. UNLESS OTHERWISE AGREED TO.
THEY SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR
CONVEYED IN ANY MANNER NOR ARE THEY
TO BE USED FOR ANY OTHER PROJECTS
OTHER THAN THAT SPECIFICALLY INDICATED
HEREIN WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION
FROM AND DUE COMPENSATION TO EVANS
DESIGN GROUP, INC.

..ALL RIGHTS RESERVED..
EVANS DESIGN GROUP, INC

C COPYRIGHT 2020

REVISIONS

JOB NUMBER:

Evans Design Group, Inc.

SHEET TITLE

4755 Summer Song Court

ENGINEER:

24-HR CONTACT:

OWNER/DEVELOPER:

C-4

JMEJME JME

01-25-21

21-005

 3320 BRUSHY FORK RD,
L.L. 99, 5TH DIST.,

PARCEL 3, GWINNETT
COUNTY, GEORGIA

 TOMC02 OFFICE
BUILDING

 

SITE
PLAN

SITE

ZONING DATA TABLE:

PARKING REQUIREMENTS:

GRAPHIC SCALE

1 inch =        ft.

( IN FEET )

0 90603015

30

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF SQUARE ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF 1" OTP ON LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMANENT CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT D.B. 58015, PG. 514

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY DRIVEWAY EASEMENT D.B. 58015, PG. 520

AutoCAD SHX Text
117,795.3 SQ. FT. 2.704 ACRES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 32°19'01" E  327.74'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 68°20'59" W  604.36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89°03'25" E  95.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 66°06'18" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
56.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 02°48'07" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARC LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
263.44'

AutoCAD SHX Text
448.25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
259.66'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 49°11'01" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
232.81'

AutoCAD SHX Text
803.44'

AutoCAD SHX Text
232.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 10°23'35" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F TOMCO EQUIPMENT CO P.B. U, PG. 158

AutoCAD SHX Text
POB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELECOM VAULT TO BE RELOCATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
35' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
35' SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' LANDSCAPE STRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' LANDSCAPE STRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' LANDSCAPE STRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' LANDSCAPE STRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' LANDSCAPE STRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' LANDSCAPE STRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED R/W DEDICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED R/W DEDICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 8' CONCRETE SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 7' CONCRETE SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 6' CONCRETE SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 6' CONCRETE SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 6' CONCRETE SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 6' CONCRETE SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 6' CONCRETE SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN ADDITION TO SHOWING THE STRUCTURES TO BE BUILT UNDER THIS CONTRACT, THE DRAWINGS SHOW CERTAIN INFORMATION OBTAINED BY THE ENGINEER REGARDING THE PIPES, POLE LINES, CONDUITS, AND OTHER STRUCTURES WHICH EXIST ALONG THE LINE OF THE WORK, BOTH AT AND BELOW THE SURFACE OF THE GROUND.  THE ENGINEER AND THE OWNER EXPRESSLY DISCLAIM ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF THE INFORMATION GIVEN ON THE DRAWINGS WITH REGARD TO EXISTING STRUCTURES, AND THE CONTRACTOR WILL NOT BE ENTITLED TO ANY EXTRA COMPENSATION ON ACCOUNT OF ANY INACCURACY OR INCOMPLETENESS OF SUCH INFORMATION, SAID STRUCTURES BEING INDICATED ONLY FOR THE CONVENIENCE OF THE CONTRACTOR, WHO MUST VERIFY THE INFORMATION TO HIS OWN SATISFACTION.  THE GIVING OF THIS INFORMATION UPON THE CONTRACT DRAWINGS WILL NOT RELIEVE THE CONTRACTOR OF HIS OBLIGATION TO SUPPORT AND PROTECT ALL PIPES, CONDUITS, AND OTHER STRUCTURES.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL LOCATE ALL UNDERGROUND OBSTRUCTIONS PRIOR TO EXCAVATION SO AS TO PREVENT ANY DAMAGE TO THOSE SERVICES OR OTHER UTILITIES.  ANY SUCH DAMAGES MUST BE REPAIRED WITHOUT DELAY AND THE COST OF SUCH REPAIRS MUST BE BORNE BY THE CONTRACTOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO. 26681

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROFESSIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
GSWCC LEVEL II CERT. # 10877

AutoCAD SHX Text
678.207.6830 (Ph)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUFORD, GA 30519

AutoCAD SHX Text
4755 SUMMER SONG COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTACT: JON M. EVANS, P.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVANS DESIGN GROUP, INC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURRENT ZONING:

AutoCAD SHX Text
R100 (GWINNETT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ZONING:

AutoCAD SHX Text
LM (SNELLVILLE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM LOT AREA:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 ACRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM LOT WIDTH:

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM ROAD FRONTAGE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
25 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
40 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAXIMUM COVER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
75% IMPERVIOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING SETBACKS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
50 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
20 FEET (35 FEET ROAD FRONTAGE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
15 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE STRIPS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALONG ROW:

AutoCAD SHX Text
10 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
OTHER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
5 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS PROPERTY DOES NOT LIE IN A 100-YR FLOOD ZONE AS SHOWN ON FIRM COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 315C0131F. DATED SEPTEMBER 29, 2006.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY REQUIREMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAXIMUM PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROVIDED PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICE @ 14,300 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 SPACE PER 300 S.F. (MINIMUM)                   1 SPACE PER 275 S.F. (MAXIMUM)

AutoCAD SHX Text
48

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
48

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
48

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
48*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*INCLUDES 2 A.D.A. SPACE (2 REQUIRED)



 

ORD 2021-16     #LUP 21-04  Page 1 of 5 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-16 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO DENY THE REQUEST TO AMEND THE 2040 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR THE CITY OF 
SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, FOR A 2.704± ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN 
LAND LOT 99 OF THE 5TH LAND DISTRICT, GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA, 
3320 BRUSHY FORK ROAD, LOGANVILLE, GEORGIA; TO PROVIDE AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 
CASE NUMBER: #LUP 21-04 
 
SIZE: 2.704± Acres 
 
LOCATION: 3320 Brushy Fork Road, Loganville, Georgia 
 
TAX PARCEL: R5099 003 
 
2030 UNIFIED PLAN FUTURE 
DEVELOPMENT MAP (Gw. Co.): Community Mixed-Use 
 
REQUESTED FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP AMENDMENT: Industrial Mixed-Use 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: Office Building and Associated Parking for 
 Future Expansion of TOMCO2 Systems 
 Facility 
 
PROPERTY OWNERS: Stephen Ray Moon and Walter Major Moon 
 Braselton, Georgia 
 
APPLICANT/CONTACT: For TOMCO2 Systems Company 
 Shane Lanham, Esq. 
 Mahaffey Pickens Tucker, LLP 
 770-232-0000 or slanham@mptlawfirm.com 
 

 

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the Mayor 

and Council thereof; and 



 

ORD 2021-16     #LUP 21-04  Page 2 of 5 
 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

deny LUP 21-04, which requested to amend the designated future land use map as it 

applies to the 2.704± acre tract of land located at 3320 Brushy Fork Road, Loganville, 

Georgia (Tax Parcel R5099 003) for a 14,300 sq. ft. office building and associated for the 

future expansion of TOMCO2 Systems facility; and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.    For reasons stated in the public hearing and upon review of the 

application submitted by Applicant, the request for a change in the future land map 

designation to Industrial Mixed-Use for the 2.704± acre tract of land as shown on the 

conceptual rezoning site plan entitled “TOMCO2 Office Building”, sealed and dated 2-8-

2021 (stamped received 2-10-2021), in Exhibit “A”, a copy of which is attached hereto 

and incorporated herein by reference is hereby denied. 

Section 2. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 3.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and 

Council that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are 

or were, upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, 

enforceable and constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 



 

ORD 2021-16     #LUP 21-04  Page 3 of 5 
 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the 

Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other 

section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 4.  Penalties in effect for violations of Chapter 1 of the Code of 

Ordinances, City of Snellville, Georgia at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance 

shall be and are hereby made applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force 

and effect. 

 Section 5.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed. 

 Section 6.   This Ordinance was adopted on _________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated 

herein. 



 

ORD 2021-16     #LUP 21-04  Page 4 of 5 
 

ORDAINED this _____ day of April, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



 

ORD 2021-16     #LUP 21-04  Page 5 of 5 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 



 

 

____________________________________________________________________________________________  

[SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER’S USE] 

 
After recording, please return to: 

Powell & Edwards, Attorneys at Law P.C. 

P.O. Box 1390 

Lawrenceville, GA  30046 

 

STATE OF GEORGIA 

COUNTY OF GWINNETT 

 

QUIT-CLAIM DEED 

 

 THIS INDENTURE, made this   day of _______________, in the year Two Thousand 

Twenty-One between 

 

CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, 

a political subdivision of the State of Georgia 

 

as party or parties of the first part, hereinafter called Grantor, and 

 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, 

a public body corporate and politic of the State of Georgia 

 

as party or parties of the second part, hereinafter called Grantee (the words "Grantor" and "Grantee" 

to include their respective heirs, successors and assigns where the context requires or permits). 

 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

 

 That the said Grantor for and in consideration of the sum of ONE DOLLAR ($1.00) and other 

valuable consideration, cash in hand paid, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, has 

bargained, sold and does by these presents bargain, sell, remise, release and forever quit-claim to the 

said Grantee, its heirs and assigns, all the right, title, interest, claim or demand which the said 



 

 

Grantor, either jointly or individually, has or may have had in and to the following described property, 

to wit: 

 

ALL THAT TRACT or parcel of land lying and being in Gwinnett County, 

Georgia, being more particularly described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by this reference.  Said tract or parcel of land being subject to 

all recorded easements of record that are not being released hereby. 

 

with all the rights, members and appurtenances to the said described premises in anywise appertaining 

or belonging. 

 

 TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the said described premises unto the said Grantee, its successors, 

heirs and assigns, so that neither the said Grantor nor its successors, nor any other person claiming 

under it shall at any time, claim or demand any right, title or interest to the aforesaid described 

premises or its appurtenances. 

 

 

(Signatures Contained On Following Page) 

 



 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Grantor has hereunto set its hand and affixed its seal, the 

day and year above written. 

 

       GRANTOR: 

Signed, sealed and delivered    City of Snellville, Georgia, a political  

in the presence of:     subdivision of the State of Georgia 

 

 

  By: (Seal) 

Unofficial Witness           Barbara Bender, Mayor 

        

 

  

Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 

 



 

 

Exhibit “A” 

Legal Description 

 

All permanent and temporary construction easements and easements for construction of slopes that 

were described as being excluded from (i.e., as a “less and except” to) the property conveyed 

pursuant to that certain Limited Warranty Deed, dated June 30, 2011, from the City of Snellville 

to the Downtown Development Authority of Snellville, Georgia, recorded on July 6, 2011 in Deed 

Book 50756, Page 138, Gwinnett County, Georgia records and that were depicted on Exhibit “B” 

to such Limited Warranty Deed, together with any fee simple title interest which Grantor may have 

in the land encumbered by such easements.   
 

 

 



____________________________________________________________________________________________  

[SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER’S USE] 

 
After recording, please return to: 

Powell & Edwards, PC 

P.O. Box 1390 

Lawrenceville, GA  30046 

 

STATE OF GEORGIA 

 

COUNTY OF GWINNETT 

 

RIGHT-OF-WAY DEED 

 

 THIS INDENTURE, made the ____ day of ___________, in the year Two Thousand 

Twenty-One between 

 

CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, 

a political subdivision of the State of Georgia 

 

as party or parties of the first part, hereinafter called Grantor, and 

 

CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, 

a political subdivision of the State of Georgia 

 

as party or parties of the second part, hereinafter called Grantee (the words "Grantor" and "Grantee" 

to include their respective heirs, successors and assigns where the context requires or permits). 

 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

 

 That the said Grantor for and in consideration of the sum of ONE DOLLAR ($1.00) and 

other valuable consideration, cash in hand paid, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, has 

bargained, sold and does by these presents bargain, sell, remise, release and forever quit-claim to the 

said Grantee, its heirs and assigns, all the right, title, interest, claim or demand which the said 



Grantor, either jointly or individually, has or may have had in and to the following described 

property, to wit: 

 

ALL THAT TRACT or parcel of land lying and being in Gwinnett County, 

Georgia, being more particularly described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by this reference. 

 

with all the rights, members and appurtenances to the said described premises in anywise 

appertaining or belonging. 

 

 TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the said described premises unto the said Grantee, its 

successors, heirs and assigns as a part of the right-of-way for which they abut, so that neither the 

said Grantor nor its successors, nor any other person claiming under it shall at any time, claim or 

demand any right, title or interest to the aforesaid described premises or its appurtenances. 

 

 

 

(Signatures Contained On Following Page) 

 

 

 



 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Grantor has hereunto set its hand and affixed its seal, 

the day and year above written. 

 

 GRANTOR: 

Signed, sealed and delivered    City of Snellville, Georgia, a political 

in the presence of: subdivision of the State of Georgia 

 

 

  By: (Seal) 

Unofficial Witness           Barbara Bender, Mayor 

 

 

  

Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 

 



Exhibit “A” 

Legal Description 

 

Being three (3) strips or tracts of land lying in the City of Snellville, the first being in Land Lots 26 

and 39, 5th District, Gwinnett County, Georgia, the second being in Land Lot 26 of the aforesaid 

District, the third being in Land Lot 39 of the aforesaid District and all being shown on a R/W 

Dedication Exhibit prepared by TerraMark Land Surveying, Inc., and more particularly described as 

follows: 

 

Tract 1 

 

For the first strip or tract of land begin at the point of intersection of the Northeasterly Right-of-Way 

Line of Oak Road (an apparent variable width right of way), and the Southeasterly Right-of-Way 

Line of North Road (an apparent variable width right of way), said point being at State Plane 

Coordinate (Georgia West Zone) of North: 1,404,139.93; East: 2,341,657.63; thence, leaving the said 

point and running with the said line of North Road, 

 

1. North 34° 27' 08" East, 184.49 feet; thence, 

2. 182.72 feet along the arc of a curve deflecting to the left, having a radius of 2,306.83 feet and 

a chord bearing and distance of North 32° 29' 03" East, 182.67 feet; thence, 

3. South 29° 38' 47" East, 6.18 feet; thence, 

4. North 30° 42' 52" East, 153.96 feet to the point of intersection with the Southwesterly Right-

of-Way Line of Wisteria Drive (an apparent variable width right of way); thence, running 

with the said line of Wisteria Drive, 

5. South 58° 14' 28" East, 0.98 feet; thence, leaving the aforesaid line of Wisteria Drive and 

running 

6. South 31° 11' 12" West, 28.98 feet; thence, 

7. South 30° 09' 20" West, 117.04 feet; thence, 

8. South 29° 22' 38" West, 94.01 feet; thence, 

9. South 34° 07' 51" West, 96.90 feet; thence, 

10. South 34° 39' 07" West, 75.02 feet; thence, 

11. South 34° 30' 32" West, 108.38 feet to a point on the aforesaid line of Oak Road; thence, 

running with the said line of Oak Road 

12. North 46° 00' 07" West, 9.27 feet to the Point of Beginning, containing 3,568 square feet or 

0.0819 of an acre of land, more or less. 

 

Tract 2 

 

To find the Point of Beginning of the second strip or tract of land, commence at the point of 

intersection of the Northeasterly Right-of-Way Line of Oak Road (an apparent variable width right of 

way), and the Southeasterly Right-of-Way Line of North Road (an apparent variable width right of 

way), said point being at State Plane Coordinate (Georgia West Zone) of North: 1,404,139.93; East: 

2,341,657.63; thence, leaving the said point and running with the said line of Oak Road, South 46° 

00' 07" East, 58.30 feet; thence, 126.07 feet along the arc of a curve deflecting to the left, having a 

radius of 160.99 feet and a chord bearing and distance of South 68° 16' 35" East, 122.87 feet to the 

True Point of Beginning of the herein described strip or tract of land; thence, leaving the said Point of 

Beginning and the aforesaid line of Oak Road and running 



 

1. North 78° 55' 17" East, 21.17 feet; thence, 

2. 108.67 feet along the arc of a curve deflecting to the right, having a radius of 185.15 feet and 

a chord bearing and distance of South 84° 15' 52" East, 107.11 feet to a point on the aforesaid 

line of Oak Road; thence, running with the said line of Oak Road 

3. South 20° 49' 56" West, 0.48 feet; thence, 

4. 102.60 feet along the arc of a curve deflecting to the left, having a radius of 189.15 feet and a 

chord bearing and distance of North 84° 34' 44" West, 101.35 feet; thence, 

5. 26.43 feet along the arc of a curve deflecting to the right, having a radius of 160.99 feet and a 

chord bearing and distance of South 84° 35' 09" West, 26.40 feet to the point of beginning, 

containing 214 square feet or 0.0049 of an acre of land, more or less. 

 

Tract 3 

 

To find the Point of Beginning of the third strip or tract of land, commence at the point of 

intersection of the Northeasterly Right-of-Way Line of Oak Road (an apparent variable width right of 

way), and the Southeasterly Right-of-Way Line of North Road (an apparent variable width right of 

way), said point being at State Plane Coordinate (Georgia West Zone) of North: 1,404,139.93; East: 

2,341,657.63; thence, leaving the said point and running with the said line of North Road, North 34° 

27' 08" East, 184.49 feet; thence, 182.72 feet along the arc of a curve deflecting to the left, having a 

radius of 2,306.83 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 32° 29' 03" East, 182.67 feet; 

thence, South 29° 38' 47" East, 6.18 feet; thence, North 30° 42' 52" East, 153.96 feet to a point of 

intersection with the Southwesterly Right-of-Way Line of Wisteria Drive (an apparent variable width 

right of way); thence, running with the said line of Wisteria Drive, South 58° 14' 28" East, 221.94 

feet to the True Point of Beginning of the herein described strip or tract of land; thence, leaving the 

said Point of Beginning and continuing with the said line of Wisteria Drive  

 

1. South 58° 14' 28" East, 12.95 feet; thence, 

2. 141.68 feet along the arc of a curve deflecting to the left, having a radius of 1,081.61 feet and 

a chord bearing and distance of South 52° 47' 52" East, 141.57 feet; thence, 

3. South 57° 57' 32" East, 18.50 feet; thence, 

4. South 59° 09' 16" East, 206.67 feet; thence, leaving the aforesaid line of Wisteria Drive and 

running 

5. South 33° 08' 28" West, 3.97 feet; thence, 

6. North 58° 17' 58" West, 207.04 feet; thence, 

7. North 58° 17' 58" West, 31.38 feet; thence, 

8. 91.73 feet along the arc of a curve deflecting to the right, having a radius of 637.50 feet and a 

chord bearing and distance of North 54° 10' 39" West, 91.65 feet; thence, 

9. 9.34 feet along the arc of a curve deflecting to the right, having a radius of 1,115.76 feet and 

a chord bearing and distance of North 49° 48' 57" West, 9.34 feet; thence, 

10. North 49° 12' 57" West, 19.58 feet; thence, 

11. 20.82 feet along the arc of a curve deflecting to the right, having a radius of 887.53 feet and a 

chord bearing and distance of North 48° 32' 47" West, 20.82 feet to the Point of Beginning, 

containing 872 square feet or 0.0200 of an acre of land, more or less. 
 

 

 



DRAFT 3.14.2021 

STATE OF GEORGIA 
COUNTY OF GWINNETT 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION, 
DEVELOPMENT, AND OPERATION OF CERTAIN COMPONENTS OF THE GROVE 

AT TOWNE CENTER IN THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE 

 This INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (the “IGA”) is made and entered into 
as of __________, 2021, by and between CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA (the “City”), a 
municipal corporation of the State of Georgia, and the DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA (the “Authority”), a public body corporate and 
politic duly created and existing under the laws of the State of Georgia. Collectively, the City and 
the Authority may be referred to herein as the “Parties.” 

 
WITNESSETH 

 
 WHEREAS, the City, the Authority, and Mid Cast Snellville, LLC are parties to that 
certain Master Development Agreement dated August 26, 2019, as amended (the “Master 
Development Agreement”), under which they are collaborating to develop “The Grove at Towne 
Center” within the city limits of the City; 
  
 WHEREAS, the Authority and the City have previously entered into separate 
intergovernmental agreements for each parcel of land needed for the STC Project as it was 
purchased and now wish to enter into this IGA to govern the rights and responsibilities of the City 
and the Authority with regard to the development, construction, and operation of the STC Project 
on the Property;  
  
 WHEREAS, the City and the Authority are financing and constructing an approximately 
750-space parking deck as the main parking facility for the STC Project, which is designed to serve 
the parking needs of the STC Project;  

 
 WHEREAS, the Authority expects to record the Parking Deck Declaration and the Master 
Declaration, which will govern the rights of the parties participating in the development of the 
STC Project with respect to the Parking Deck and the STC Project, in general;  
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority expects to enter into certain construction contracts (the 
“Construction Contracts”) for construction of a parking deck, a city market facility, and certain 
public improvements in connection with the development of the STC Project [ARE WE ABLE 
TO FURTHER IDENTIFY EACH CONTRACT?]; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to enter into this IGA for the purpose of authorizing certain 
actions to be taken by the Authority and contracting with the Authority to specify certain 
operational details regarding the Parking Deck and the other Municipal Improvements as part of 
their responsibility to use these assets to stimulate growth, revitalization, and economic expansion 
in the City. 

 



2 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the respective representations and agreements 
hereinafter contained and in furtherance of the mutual public purposes hereby sought to be 
achieved, the City and the Authority do hereby agree, as follows: 

 
ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

 The following words and terms shall have the meanings set forth below. Capitalized words 
and phrases not defined below or elsewhere herein shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in the 
Master Development Agreement.  

 “City Market” means the Improvements to be constructed by the Authority on Parcel 
4b(Market). 

 “Construction Contracts” is defined in the Recitals of this IGA. 

 “IGA” means this Intergovernmental Agreement between the City and the Authority 
concerning ownership, operation, and maintenance of certain components of the STC Project. 

 “Project Documents” means, collectively, the Parking Deck Declaration, the Master 
Declaration, the Joint Development Agreement, and the Construction Contracts. 

ARTICLE II 
REPRESENTATIONS 

 
Section 2.1. Representations of the City.  The City makes the following representations: 

 
a. The recitals above are hereby incorporated into the terms of this IGA as if fully set 

forth herein. 
 

b. The has City previously determined that the acquisition of the Property by the 
Authority was in the best interest of the City and the inhabitants thereof. 

 
c. The City has previously determined and now reaffirms that the development of 

the STC Project will provide job opportunities, encourage private development, 
relieve unemployment in the City, provide recreational opportunities, and 
otherwise support and expand the economy of the City. 

 
d. The City believes that the assistance of the City in financing the acquisition and 

development of the STC Project is of critical importance to the Authority.  
 

e. The City has the authority to enter into this IGA and perform all obligations 
contained herein, and has, by proper action, duly authorized the execution and 
delivery of this IGA. 

 
f. Article IX, Section VI, Paragraph III of the Constitution of the State of Georgia of 

1983 provides that the development of trade, commerce, industry and employment 



3 
 

opportunities is a public purpose vital to the welfare of the people of the State of 
Georgia. 

 
g. The Property is within the Downtown Development Area as designated by the City 

for the operation of the Authority, as provided in the Downtown Development 
Authorities Law. 

 
Section 2.2. Representations of the Authority.  The Authority makes the following 
representations: 

 
a. The recitals above are hereby incorporated into the terms of this IGA as if fully set 

forth herein. 
 

b. The Authority is a public body corporate and politic duly created and existing under 
the laws of the State of Georgia for the purpose to (a) develop and promote trade, 
commerce, industry, and employment opportunities for the public good and the 
general welfare and to promote the general welfare of the state, (b) to make and 
execute contracts and other instruments necessary to exercise the powers of the 
Authority, (c) to sell, lease, exchange, transfer, assign, pledge, mortgage, dispose 
of, or grant options for any real or personal property or interest therein for any such 
purposes, (d) to dispose of any real property for fair market value, regardless of 
prior development of such property as a project, whenever the board of directors of 
the Authority may deem such disposition to be in the best interests of the Authority 
if the board of directors of the Authority prior to such disposition shall determine 
that such real property no longer can be used advantageously as a project for the 
development of trade, commerce, industry, and employment opportunities, and (e) 
to mortgage, convey, pledge, or assign any properties, revenues, income, tolls, 
charges, or fees owned or received by the Authority;  
 

c. The Authority hereby warrants that it is not subject to any bylaw or contractual or 
other limitation or provision of any nature whatsoever which in any way limits, 
restricts or prevents it from entering into this IGA and performing its obligations 
hereunder. 

ARTICLE III 
TERM OF CONTRACT 

 
Section 3.1. Term.  The term of this IGA shall commence with the execution and delivery 
hereof and shall extend for fifty (50) years. The Parties shall meet within a reasonable time in 
advance of the expiration date of the initial term of this IGA to consider its renewal. 

 
ARTICLE IV 

AGREEMENTS REGARDING THE PROPERTY  
 

Section 4.1. The Property. The Parties acknowledge that the Authority holds title to the Property 
and, as such, shall act as the appropriate “City Party” under the Master Development Agreement 
for purposes of the conveyance of the Phase I Property and the Phase II Property to the Developer 



4 
 

and the acquisition of the Phase I(a) Municipal Development Parcels and the Phase I(b) Municipal 
Development Parcels, all as contemplated in the Master Development Agreement. The Parties 
agree that, during the term of this IGA, title to the Phase I(a) Municipal Development Parcels and 
the Phase I(b) Municipal Development Parcels shall be vested in the Authority. The Parties agree 
that the Authority shall manage the improvements constructed on the Phase I(a) Municipal 
Development Parcels and the Phase I(b) Municipal Development Parcels in a manner that is 
consistent with the Project Documents. The Authority may negotiate leases of all or a portion the 
City Market and work with prospective tenants thereof upon such terms and conditions as are 
determined acceptable by the Authority, subject to the approval of the Mayor and Council of the 
City. The Authority will follow the directions of the Mayor and Council of the City as to how, 
when and to whom the Phase I(a) Municipal Development Parcels or the Phase I(b) Municipal 
Development Parcels are disposed of. The Authority agrees that the proceeds of any sale, lease or 
other disposition of any of the Phase I(a) Municipal Development Parcels or the Phase I(b) 
Municipal Development Parcels shall be deposited or disposed of as directed by the City. The City 
agrees that neither the sale, lease or other disposition of all or any portion of the Phase I(a) 
Municipal Development Parcels or the Phase I(b) Municipal Development Parcels or any interest 
therein shall affect its obligations under this IGA. 

 
ARTICLE V 

PROJECT INSTRUMENTS; OTHER 
 
Section 5.1 City and Authority Agreements. Subject to the details set forth generally in 
this IGA and specifically in this Article, the City consents to the Authority entering into the 
Parking Deck Declaration and the Master Declaration. In addition, the Authority, on behalf of the 
City and at the City’s express instruction, shall enter into the Construction Contracts. 
 
Section 5.2. City and Obligations. The City agrees that, during the term of this IGA, the City 
shall be obligated to fund in its general operating budget the funds necessary to satisfy the 
contractual commitments of the Authority as follows:  
 

a. The Parking Deck Declaration. The City shall provide the Authority with funding 
necessary on an annual basis (or such other frequency as may be necessary) to 
allow the Authority to satisfy all of its obligations under the Parking Deck 
Declaration;  

b. The Master Declaration.  The City shall provide the Authority with funding 
necessary on an annual basis (or such other frequency as may be necessary) to 
allow the Authority to satisfy all of its obligations under the Master Declaration; 
and 

c. The Joint Development Agreement.  The City shall provide the Authority with 
funding necessary on a monthly basis (or such other frequency as may be 
necessary) to allow the Authority to satisfy all of its obligations under the Joint 
Development Agreement; and 

d. Construction Contracts. The City shall provide the Authority with funding 
necessary on a monthly basis (or such other frequency as may be necessary) to 



5 
 

allow the Authority to satisfy all of its obligations under the Construction 
Contracts. 

Section 5.3. Source of Funds for City's Payment Obligations; Limitations on Additional 
Contracts. 
 
 The obligation of the City to make payments under this IGA shall constitute a general 
obligation of the City, payable out of any funds lawfully available to it for such purpose from 
whatever source derived (including general funds). The City covenants and agrees that it 
shall, to the extent necessary, levy an annual ad valorem tax on all taxable property  located within 
the territorial limits of the City, as now existent and as the same may hereafter  be extended, at 
such rate or rates as may be necessary to produce in each year revenues which will be sufficient 
to fulfill the City's obligations under this IGA, from which revenues the City agrees to appropriate 
sums sufficient to pay in full when due all of the City's obligations under this IGA. The City 
hereby creates and grants a lien in favor of the Authority on any and all revenues realized by the 
City from such tax, if levied, to make the payments that are required under this IGA, which lien 
is superior to any that can hereafter be created. Nothing herein contained, however, shall be 
construed as limiting the right of the City to make the payments called for by this IGA out of any 
funds lawfully available to it for such purpose, from whatever source derived (including general 
funds). 

Section 5.4. Agency for Construction Contracts [BROAD ENOUGH?]. 

The Authority hereby appoints the City as its exclusive agent for the purpose of 
administering the Construction Contracts, and more generally, for causing the acquisition, 
construction, equipping, and installation of Municipal Improvements. The City, as agent for the 
Authority for such purpose, assumes all rights, duties and responsibilities of the Authority 
regarding supervision of the acquisition, construction, and installation of the Improvements as are 
granted to or imposed upon the Authority pursuant to the Construction Contracts. The City shall 
supervise the acquisition, construction, equipping, and installation of the Municipal Improvements 
in a manner to ensure that, upon final completion thereof, the Municipal Improvements shall be 
free and clear of all liens and encumbrances that may arise in connection with the work performed 
and that the Municipal Improvements will be acceptable to the City for their use, occupancy, and 
operation during the term of this IGA. The City is hereby authorized to execute and deliver any 
documents with respect to administering the Project Documents. The Authority shall cooperate 
with the City, as requested by the City, in connection with the execution, delivery, and performance 
of any Project Documents.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, title to the Municipal 
Improvements shall be and shall remain in the Authority. 

Section 5.5 Amendments. The Authority shall not alter or amend the Project Documents 
without the City’s express written consent.  

Section 5.5 Communications. On a frequency to be established by the City, but not less than 
quarterly, the Authority shall provide to the City information regarding the facilities subject to this 
IGA that will allow the City to reasonably ascertain the status of such facilities and the resources 
(financial or otherwise) that the City needs available to assist the Authority in its operations and 
maintenance plans thereof.  



6 
 

ARTICLE VI 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
Section 6.1. Governing Law. This IGA and the rights and obligations of the parties hereto 
(including third party beneficiaries) shall be governed, construed and interpreted according to the 
laws of the State of Georgia, without regard to principles of conflicts of laws. 
 
Section 6.2. Entire Agreement. This IGA expresses the entire understanding and all 
agreements between the parties hereto. 
 
Section 6.3. Severability. If any provision of this IGA shall be held or deemed to be or shall, in 
fact, be inoperative or unenforceable as applied in any particular case in any jurisdiction or 
jurisdictions or in all jurisdictions, or in all cases because it conflicts with any other provision or 
provisions hereof or any constitution or statute or rule of public policy, or for any other reason, 
such circumstances shall not have the effect of rendering the provision in question inoperative or 
unenforceable in any other case or circumstance, or of rendering any other provision or provisions 
herein contained invalid, inoperative or unenforceable to any extent whatever. The invalidity of 
any one or more phrases, sentences, clauses or sections contained in this IGA shall not affect the 
remaining portions of this IGA or any part thereof. 
 
Section 6.4. Survival of Warranties. All agreements, representations and warranties of the 
parties hereunder, or made in writing by or on behalf of them in connection with the transactions 
contemplated hereby, shall survive the execution and delivery hereof, regardless of any 
investigation or other action taken by any person relying thereon. 
 
Section 6.5. Counterparts. This IGA may be executed in several counterparts, each of which 
shall be an original, and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 
 
Section 6.6. Amendments in Writing. No waiver, amendment, release or modification of this 
IGA shall be established by conduct, custom or course of dealing, but solely by an instrument in 
writing only executed by the parties hereto. 
 
Section 6.7. Notices. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, any notices, demands, 
approvals, consents, requests and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be 
deemed given when the writing is delivered in person or five days after being mailed, if mailed, 
by certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, to the City and the Authority, 
respectively, at the addresses shown below or at such other addresses as may be furnished by the 
City or the Authority in writing from time to time: 
 

CITY:    City of Snellville  
      2342 Oak Road 
      Snellville, Georgia 30078-2361 
 
  AUTHORITY:  Downtown Development Authority of 
      Snellville, Georgia 
      2342 Oak Road 



7 
 

      Snellville, Georgia 30078-2361 
 
Section 6.8. Limitation of Rights.  Nothing in this IGA, express or implied, shall give to any 
person, other than the parties hereto and their successors and assigns hereunder, any benefit or any 
legal or equitable right, remedy or claim under this IGA. 
 

[Execution on Following Page] 



8 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Authority have caused this IGA to be 
executed in their respective corporate name sand have caused their respective corporate seals to 
be hereunto affixed and attested by their duly authorized officers, all as of this ______day of 
__________, 2021. 
 
Signed, sealed and delivered in the   CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA 
presence of: 
 
_______________________________________ By:  ________________________________ 
Unofficial Witness Barbara Bender, Mayor 
 
______________________________________ Attest:  _____________________________ 
Notary Public       Melisa Arnold, City Clerk 
 
My Commission Expires:  ________________     [SEAL] 
 
 [NOTARIAL SEAL] 
 
 
       DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT  
       AUTHORITY OF  
Signed, sealed and delivered in the   SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA 
presence of: 
 
_______________________________________ By:  ________________________________ 
Unofficial Witness Don Britt, Chairman 
 
______________________________________ Attest:  _____________________________ 
Notary Public       Secretary 
 
My Commission Expires:  ________________     [SEAL] 
 
 [NOTARIAL SEAL] 
 



Agenda Item Summary 
 
 
 
Date:  April 12, 2021 
 
 
Prepared by:  Butch Sanders 
 
 
Agenda item:  Property and Casualty Insurance Bid 
 
Background: We bid our P&L insurance for the first time in a number of years and the pricing 
came back at: GIRMA - $314,141 
  Travelers - $287,624 
 
We have worked hard to make sure the bids were “apples-to-apples” and I believe they are. 
The only major change would be in main law firms defending our cases where Freeman, Mathis 
and Gary would replace Ellarbee/Thompson. I hate to lose Sharon Morgan’s services, but I have 
worked with FMG in the past and they are also excellent. The change also may well mean some 
extra administrative work until it becomes routine. References were strong for both entities.   

 
 
Financial Impact:  Savings of $26,517 
 
 
Recommendation: Review and approve the P&L bid from Travelers 
 
 
Action requested:  VOTE to approve the award of next year’s P&L insurance to Travelers 
through Apex and the Hood Insurance Agency. 
 
 
Attachments: Documents available upon request 
 

City of Snellville 2342 Oak Road Snellville, GA 30078  770.985.3500 www.snellville.org



Agenda Item Summary 
 
 
 
Date:  April 12, 2021 
 
 
Prepared by:  Gaye Johnson  
                    Director of Public Works 
 
Agenda item:   
Consideration and Action on Surplus of Christmas Decorations for Light Poles 
 
Background:   
Public Works has 127 snowflakes for surplus. They are in poor condition and not 
usable as they are.  Some would require total revamping and rewiring.   
 
The City will dispose of these by selling them on eBay. 
  
Financial Impact:  
There is a small cost to list these items on eBay, but that is usually recouped in 
the sale.  
 
Recommendation:  
Approve the surplus of the items listed for disposal. 
 
Action requested:   
Motion and affirmative vote to approve the listed items for surplus.   
 
Attachments:  
• None 

City of Snellville 2342 Oak Road Snellville, GA 30078  770.985.3500 www.snellville.org


	Work Session Agenda
	Public Hearing & Regular Business
	Announcements
	PRO 2021-06 - Arab American Heritage Month
	Minutes for Approval
	AIS 4-12-2021 RZ 21-01 LUP 21-01 W_Ords.pdf
	Agenda Item Summary - RZ 21-01 LUP 21-01
	ORD 2021-07 LUP 21-01 (Approval & Denial)
	ORD 2021-08 RZ 21-01 (Approval & Denial)


	AIS Apr 12 RZ 21-02 LUP 21-02 (3-31-2021)w ORDS.pdf
	Agenda Item Summary - RZ 21-02 LUP 21-02 SFH - Rosebud Rd
	ORD 2021-10 RZ 21-02 (Approval & Denial)
	ORD 2021-11 LUP 21-02 (Approval & Denial)


	AIS Apr 12 RZ 21-03 LUP 21-03 (3-31-2021)w ORDS.pdf
	Agenda Item Summary
	ORD 2021-12 RZ 21-03 (Approval & Denial) 
	ORD 2021-13 LUP 21-03 (Approval & Denial)


	AIS Apr 12 ANX 21-01 RZ 21-04 LUP 21-04 (3-31-2021)w ORDS.pdf
	Agenda Item Summary - ANX 21-01 RZ 21-04 LUP 21-04 - Tomco
	ORD 2021-14 - ANX 21-01 Draft  Ordinance  (Approval & Denial).pdf 
	ORD 2021-15 - RZ 21-04 Draft Ordinance (Approval & Denial).pdf 
	ORD 2021-16 - LUP 21-04 (Approval & Denial)


	Consent Agenda Items
	Quit Claim Deed - City & Downtown Development Authority
	Right of Way Deed - City
	IGA - City and Downtown Development Authority

	Agenda Item Summary - Award of Bid for Property & Casualty Insurance 
	Agenda Item Summary - Surplus of Snowflakes 



